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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after

due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there

will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever anising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2T ER
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EEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITES

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (Chairperson) Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry
BMERL (FE) BEEXL

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BAFITES

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES (FOR THE PURPOSES OF
THE GEM LISTING RULES)
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry
Mr. YEUNG Tsz Kit Alban (FCG, FCS & FCPA Australia)
(appointed on 2 December 2020)
Ms. LEUNG Yin Fai (HKICPA, ACCA, CPA Australia)
(resigned on 2 December 2020)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YEUNG Tsz Kit Alban (FCG, FCS & FCPA Australia)
(appointed on 2 December 2020)

Ms. LEUNG Yin Fai (HKICPA, ACCA, CPA Australia)
(resigned on 2 December 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (Chairperson)
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (Chairperson)
Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (Chairperson)
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM

LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (Chairperson)
Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
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AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

25th Floor, Wing On Centre
I'1'l Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Innovax Capital Limited

Room 2002, 20/F

Chinachem Century Tower

178 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW
CHARLTONS

| 2th floor, Dominion Centre
43-59 Queen'’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Hang Seng Bank Limited
19/F

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KYI-1108

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Office No.5 on 22nd Floor, Universal Trade Centre
No.3 Arbuthnot Road
Central

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY'I-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

WWW.jiagroup.co

GEM STOCK CODE
8519
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

As of 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$173.3
million or 20.4% less than last year (2019: HK$217.7 million). Losses for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$20.4 million (2019: loss of HK$32.0
million). The decrease was mainly due to provisions and write downs in 2020 when
new concepts replaced an aging line up. The financials were further affected by the
anti-epidemic measures implemented by the authorities which led lower traffic at our
restaurants and the one-off subsidies received from the Hong Kong government's

employment support scheme and food license holder subsidy scheme.

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS

For the year under review, the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 was of paramount concem
for Hong Kong. Restaurants were subject to ever changing social distancing restrictions in
the form of seating restrictions and reduced dining hours. Although the Hong Kong SAR
Government's subsidies for employment support scheme offset part of the impact, the

financial performance of the Group was inevitably affected.

In the face of the ever changing COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, we adopted a flexible
policy to respond quickly, fortunately we found these challenges also meant new
opportunities. Amid the COVID-19 pandemic, we identified a new economies and
adapted to the changing landscape. We identified and implemented food items suitable
for delivery and takeaway and created premium and diversified catering sets on our online
and offline platform, JIA Everywhere. The share of our total revenue derived from our
delivery and takeaway business during the year increased, a testament to the effort in this
area. To further enhance our supply chain capability, we transformed the existing central

kitchen in Fo Tan into a cloud kitchen as part of a long term expansion strategy.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
ETRBEE

To support the new brand diversification strategy, we developed the Group's first mass
market speciality coffee brand, ‘Between'. Our first flagship opened at Tai Kwun, Central in

November 2020 and it's initial sales revenue proved promising.

Despite the current gradual relaxation of dining restrictions in Hong Kong, we expect that
the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to bring various uncertainties to the market for
2021. Therefore, we will maintain a highly vigilant and a flexible business model to respond

to changes at any given time.

The Group will continue to expand into more market segments by pursuing a multi-brand
and multi-concept strategy. Apart from maintaining and enhancing the Group's high-
end catering services, we plan to further promote our casual dining restaurants with high
operating profits such as Bibi & Baba and Between. In February 2021, we opened our first
Between Pop Up at Haus Central, in partnership with Tatler Asia Limited and a second
branch of Between in Wanchai. We will continue to identify other suitable locations for
future expansion, with the short-term target of opening more specialty restaurants and
collaborating with various young and influential brands to further expand our customer

base.

During this time, we have also begun investing in the food tech space. In October 2020,
we invested into Singapore-based Merchant Management Solutions PTE. LTD, a company
incorporated in Singapore engaged in enterprise SaaS Suite for the online food and
delivery businesses. We intend to continue identifying targets whose business models can
create innovative synergies with our business and fit into our multi-brand development

strategy.
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CHAIRPERSON'’S STATEMENT

The hard work and determination of our teams during COVID-19 has been outstanding.
I 'would like to sincerely thank them for their dedication and unwavering passion to
their profession and to be able to maintain operations with mutual respect during these
uncertain and challenging times. As a diverse group, we come from all over with colourful
skill sets but the one commonality we have is our ability to maintain our humble passion
for food, drink and people. We will continue to invest and deliver exceptional experiences

and convivial hospitality.

WONG Pui Yain
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

M mE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Year ended 3| December

HAaRE BZENA3IALEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB7 Fis7
Revenue LN 173,303 217,738
Loss before taxation BRI AIEE (19,737) (31,697)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FRBEREZERZAE (19,100) (31,957)
Total comprehensive expense for the year attrbutable to AR BIHEE ABIGEE
owners of the Company PHERX B (20,407) (31957)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES As at 31 December
BEREE R12B318
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT Fi57
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRnBEE 99,986 87,192
Current assets RENEE 38,070 32948
Total assets BEEHAE 138,056 120,140
Equity and liabilities Bakak
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 30,444 18,270
Current liabilities RBEE 84,074 72,695
Total liabilities BELE 114518 90,965
Total equity Bmies 23,538 29,175
Net current liabilities REBEETE (46,004) (39,747)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB mE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a well-established restaurant group in Hong Kong with award-winning
restaurants serving a variety of cuisines including Chinese, Spanish, ltalian, French, Nyonya,

Thai and specialty coffee under different brands and themes.

During the vear ended 3| December 2020, the Group offered various types of
international cuisines via its restaurants including 208 Duecento Otto, 22 Ships, Louise,
Duddell's, Chachawan, And0, Bibi & Baba and Between. With diversified brands and
differential market positions, we managed to attract customer bases with different

spending powers.

During the year under review, despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our
operations, the Group, as a leading diversified restaurant brand manager and operator in
Hong Kong, has implemented several cost-saving initiatives to reduce costs on rentals, raw
materials and consumables used as well as other operating expenses. The Group launched
marketing campaigns proactively including adding numerous food items to the menus of
our restaurants which are more suitable for takeaway, and creating different premium
and diversified dinner sets. The Group upgraded its computer systems and improved the
online meal order platform of JIA Everywhere, our online/offline meal delivery platform.
As a result, the share of our total revenue derived from our takeaway business during the

year increased markedly.

s88 | | RS Hopeha 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of brand diversification strategy, during the year under review, the Group

reopened one restaurant, repositioned two restaurants and opened one new restaurant:

. “22 Ships” in Wanchai was reopened with fresh interior and a focus on authentic
Spanish tapas.
. “Ham and Sherry" in the same neighbourhood was reopened as “Bibi and Baba”

with a re-designed space and South-east Asian food concept.

. “Old Bailey” at Tai Kwun was transformed into a specialty coffee/cafe restaurant

with updated furnishing to build the specialty coffee brand Between.

. “And0", previously named “REN", which is located in the heart of Central, was
opened in July 2020 featuring fine European cuisine under the helm of chef Agustin

Balbi.

The Group possesses strong brand value. The Group's three well-known chefs, namely
Julien Royer, Agustin Balbi and Ricardo Chaneton, were listed in the world's top 100 in the
The Best Chef Awards 2020, ranking No. 19, 20 and 94 respectively, highly recognized
and affirmed by the market and gourmet lovers. Julien Royer, Agustin Balbi and Ricardo
Chaneton leads the team of Louise, And O and Mono respectively, demonstrating that the

Group has gained recognition in brand development and gourmet quality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

In recent years, e-commerce has gained popularity, which has given birth to new business
models. Benefit King Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has
commenced operation of the Group's first cloud kitchen in the Fo Tan district of Hong
Kong, which enables more catering brands to operate simultaneously and enhances space
utilization, while expanding business scale. The cloud kitchen also helps increase sale
channels vigorously and establish close cooperation with app-based meal delivery platform
to provide meal services for the residential and commercial communities of Fo Tan, Sha
Tin, Kau To Shan, Pak Shek Kok and Hong Kong Science Park in the first phase. As an
extension of cloud kitchen business, the Group has also created three virtual brands to

offer Cantonese dim sum, Cantonese stir fry and Thai curry respectively.

Food tech investment is one of key developments our sectors will engage with in the
medium to long term. On 28 October 2020, Incredible Resources Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a simple agreement for future equity
with Merchant Management Solutions PTE. LTD, a private limited company incorporated
in Singapore to make an investment in the target company. Investing into this SaaS
platform exposes the Group to a new sector, and may pave the way for potential

synergies with the cloud kitchen and upgrade of JIA Everywhere.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue from external
customers based on their nature for the year ended 31 December 2020 with the

comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2019:

EEENWmE DM

B35 1 RE

L'ON

TREHNAEESRINEZ2020F 12 A31H
HFEERRPHEMNINRE PR A RS
MBR0I9F R BSE

For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3ALEE

2020 2019
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FisE THET TET
Catering services EHRS
— Fine dining —EmER | 92,881 75433
— Mid-market dining —FImER 2 24,391 66,623
— Specialty coffee —fadmimeE 3 2,193 -
— Casual dining —KEEH 4 53,838 75,682
173,303 217,738
Note |: Duddell's (Central), Louise, And O and Mono are classified as fine dining. Wi #=Fet (RIE) - Louise  Ando &
Mono D BRIRERR -
Note 2: 208 Duecento Otto, 22 ships, Old Bailey, Behind Bars and Aberdeen Street Social are MizE2: 208 Duecento Otto * 22 Ships » Old Bailey
classified as mid-market dining. Behind Bars &z Aberdeen Street Social )58 /5
HIRELR
Note 3: Between (Tai Kwun) is classified as specialty coffee. Mi5E3: Between(KEE) 7 58 A48 SaMNEE -
Note 4: Mak Mak, Duddell's (Airport), Chachawan, Commissary, Meen & Rice, Ham & Sherry and WzE4: Mak Mak - HEF 26 (#ig) -
Bibi & Baba are classified as casual dining. Chachawan * Commissary * 553888 + Ham
& Sherry K Bibi & Baba D B B KB EHK
Note 5: The Group closed Aberdeen Street Social and Commissary in April 2019 and April 2020, WizEs: ANEBEDRIR2019F4 8 %2020F4 B

respectively and opened Louise at the premises occupied by Aberdeen Street Social in mid-
June 2019. 22 ships, Ham & Sherry, Old Bailey and Behind Bars suspended their operations
in March 2020 and April 2020, respectively, while 22 ships was reopened in June 2020.
And 0, previously named “REN" was opened in July 2020. Meen & Rice was disposed in
December 2020.

P Aberdeen Street Social 2 Commissary * il
Louise 7220194 6 A H A TE Aberdeen Street
Social FTERE FTFI % © 22 Ships * Ham &
Sherry * Old Bailey &Behind Bars#3 Bl #2020
F3AR2020F4AFE - ™22 Shipsi
202046 BB © And O (FITEH[REN])
202057 AFIZE o IRIHEEER P 20204 12
ABHE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's total revenue amounted
to approximately HK$173.3 million (2019: approximately HK$217.7 million). The
Group recognised a decrease of total revenue by approximately HK$44.4 million or

approximately 20.4% from 2019 to 2020.
Other income

Other income significantly increased by approximately HK$17.2 million from
approximately HK$4.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$21.3 million for the year ended 3| December 2020. Such increases were
mainly due to the one-off subsidies amounting to approximately HK$14.8 million
and approximately HK$4.6 million, received from the employment support scheme
and food licence holder subsidy scheme of the Hong Kong Government under the

Anti-epidemic Fund, respectively.
Raw materials and consumables used

Raw materials and consumables used by the Group include, but is not limited to,
vegetable, meat, seafood and frozen food etc. They are one of the major components
of the Group's operating expenses which amounted to approximately HK$46.5 million
and HK$53.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively,
representing approximately 26.8% and 24.7% of the Group's total revenue for the
corresponding years. The decrease in raw materials and consumables used was mainly due

to the decrease in revenue.
Staff costs

Staff costs represented one of the major components of the Group's operating expenses,
which primarily consisted of Directors’ emoluments, salaries and allowance, retirement
benefit scheme contributions and other benefits. Staff costs decreased by approximately
HKS$I'1.5 million from approximately HK$92.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately HK$81.! million for the year ended 3| December 2020. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in number of staff in restaurants as a measure of

cost control and offering of no-pay leave to its employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$20.4 million for the year ended 3| December 2020, representing
a decrease in loss of approximately HK$1 1.6 million as compared with a loss of

approximately HK$32.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Should the one-off government subsidies under the employment support scheme and
food licence holder subsidy scheme amounting to approximately HK$19.4 million be
excluded, the Company would record a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$39.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing an
increase in loss of approximately HK$7.8 million as compared with the corresponding
period in 2019. Such increase in loss attributable to owners of the Company was primarily
attributable to the weak revenue performance which was significantly impacted by the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since January 2020, which outweighed the decrease
in the operating cost of our food and beverage business, comprising mainly the cost of
raw materials and consumables used, staff costs and advertising and promotion expenses,
the decrease of which was a result of our cost control and the closing down of certain

underperforming restaurants.

USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

As the actual amount of the listing expenses was higher than the estimated amount of the
listing expenses set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 January 2018 (the
"Prospectus”), the actual net proceeds from the share offer of approximately HK$11.7
million (after deduction of the underwriting commission and listing related expenses), was
less than the estimated net proceeds of approximately HK$13.6 million as set out in the

Prospectus and the allotment results announcement dated 7 February 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWRE DM

Approximate

Actual use of

net proceeds

Unused total
net proceeds

Planned use percentage up to up to
of total of total 31 December 31 December
Use of net proceeds net proceeds net proceeds 2020 2020
EZE20205F BEZ20205F
GRS RRE 12A31BH 12831 BH
BIRERE RERBA Fri& R e R By R 4
FIERIRRRAR REEAR BRL FEERAR  AERRFEE
(HK$ million) % (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B8ET) (B8ET) (B&ET)
To develop new dining concepts and ~ FEIZFA S
restaurants Mot D RER =D 77 65.8% 77 -
To carry out maintenance to the REEEREER
Group's existing restaurants N2 HETTIRE 19D 26 22.2% 26 -
To repay term loan Mee? BIETF e e 1.0 8.6% 1.0 -
General working capital —REEER 0.4 34% 0.4 -
Total st 7 100% 17 -
Notes: BisE
The Group utilised the net proceeds to finance the establishment of two restaurants in the AEER019FE=FEHAMETIBFE
third quarter of 2019, namely, Louise and Duddell's Airport. REZMEEZR (Bllouise REPE TS ) B
NES -
2. The Group commenced the renovation and maintenance works of existing restaurants in the 2. AEERWIFE—FERRRBEZENH
first quarter of 2019. HRRETIE -
3. The repayments of term loans were executed according to the maturity dates as set in the 3. EETHEREREMERT 2 ANER BH

PTELEHA B BT

loan agreements with banks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF NEW SHARES
UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

Placing completed on 24 September 2020 (the “Placing”)

Reference is made to the announcements issued by the Company on 7 September
2020 and 24 September 2020 in relation to the placing of new shares under the general

mandate.

On 7 September 2020, the Group and a placing agent entered into a placing agreement,
pursuant to which the Group appointed the placing agent to procure altogether not less
than six independent placees for placing up to an aggregate of 171,910,000 placing shares
at a placing price of HK$0.08 per placing share. The closing price for the Company's
shares on 7 September was HK$0.10 per share.

The Placing was completed on 24 September 2020 with gross and net proceeds of
approximately HK$13.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.08 per placing share)
and HK$13.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.077 per placing share) as set out
in the Company's announcements dated 7 September 2020 and 24 September 2020. The
Company intended to use the proceeds for (i) developing the cloud kitchen business of
the Group; (ii) upgrading the sales channels of the Group, including “JIA Everywhere”, the
online/offline delivery platform of the Group; (iii) investing in potential PRC or overseas
food and beverage related investment opportunities; (iv) developing new catering outlets

of the Group and for brand management; and (v) loan repayment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

Planned use

of proceeds as

Actual use of

Unused total

described in the Approximate net proceeds net proceeds
announcement percentage of up to up to
dated 7 September total net 31 December 31 December
Use of net proceeds from the Placing 2020 proceeds 2020 2020
BHAR20205 EZ20205 EZ20205
IRATEN  ERAEHR 12831 BH# 12831 BH#Y
DEFRLN REEN FrEE e R E) A
RERSREFRAR FRERETEAR Ak FEERRAE ARERRFE
(HK$ million) % (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B&BET) (B&ET) (B8AET)
Developing the cloud kitchen BREGREEEBK
business and upgrading the RIHERE
sales channels ETHR 45 34.1% 0.l 44
Investing in potential PRC or RERH B HEINY
overseas food and beverage BESRIEH
related investment REKSE
opportunities 25 18.9% 08 |7
Developing new catering FROERDE
outlets 1.2 9.1% 0.1 .1
Loan repayment EEER 50 37.9% 50 -
Total st 132 100% 60 72

The Company intends to continue to apply the proceeds from the Placing in a manner
consistent with that mentioned above and it is expected that these proceeds will be fully

utilized by March 2022. The Directors will continue to evaluate the Group's operations

and financial performance when applying the proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group finances its operations primarily through cash generated from operating

activities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The Group recorded net current liabilities of approximately HK$46.0 million as at 31
December 2020 (2019: net current liabilities HK$39.7 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current ratio was approximately 0.5 (2019: 0.5)
and the Group's gearing ratio calculated based on the total debt (excluding trade nature
balances, tax balances and provision) at the end of the year divided by total equity at the
end of the year was approximately 399.2% (2019: 237.6%). The increase was mainly due

to the Group's drawing-down of bank loans amounted to HK$14.0 million.

As at 31 December 2020, the maximum limit of the banking facilities available to the
Group amounted to HK$36.0 million and has been fully utilised. The bank borrowings
are subject to variable interest rate of the higher of 2.50% per annum over HIBOR or the
bank’s cost of funds and 2.50% per annum below Prime Rate or the bank's cost of funds.
The weighted average interest rate is 3.51% per annum as at 3| December 2020 (2019:
4.62% per annum).

The capital structure of the Company comprised ordinary shares only. On 24 September
2020, the Company issued 171,910,000 new shares through the placing of new shares
with proceeds amounting to HK$13.2 million, net of share issuing costs. As at 31
December 2020, the Company has 1,031,910,000 ordinary shares in issue. Total equity
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately HK$25.0 million as at
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$29.2 million).

Breach of Loan Agreements

Certain bank loan facilities of the Group are subject to certain covenants on financial
gearing and capital requirements as commonly required under lending arrangements with
financial institutions. The Directors became aware that the Group has technically breached
the loan covenant as the Group has failed to fulfill certain financial criteria in which the
calculation is based on the Group's financial information, details are set out in note 26 to

the audited consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWMRON

The Board is of the opinion that, after taking into account the existing bank balances and
cash, internally generated funds and available banking facilities, the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operations. However, if the liquidity position deteriorates as a result
of prolonged COVID-19 pandemic impact or other unforeseen circumstances, Ms. Wong
Pui Yain, being the controlling shareholder and Director of the Company, will provide
continuing financial support to the Group and take measures to enable the Group to have
sufficient working capital to meet its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due
and to continue to carry on its business for the next coming twelve months from the date

of this report.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group during the year ended 31

December 2020.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE RISKS

The Group operated mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group's transactions settled
in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Group did not have significant exposure to foreign

exchange risk during the year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to floating-rate
bank borrowing, and fair value interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and
non-interest bearing amounts due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and amount due from an associate. The
Company is mainly exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to non-interest

bearing amounts due to subsidiaries.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of

HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2020, the maximum exposure in relation to credit risk of the Group
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Board considers

the credit risk of the Company is immaterial.

The Group trades with a large number of individual customers and trading terms are
predominately on cash and credit card settlement. In view of the Group's operations, the

Group does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single individual customer.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
companies, a controlling shareholder and an associate. The Board considers the

counterparties to be of good credit worthiness based on its past repayment history.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank deposits of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed banks. The Group
has concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and bank balances

are placed with two banks in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash

and cash equivalent deemed adequate by the management of the Group to finance the

Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Saved as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant investments, material

acquisitions nor disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had contracted but not provided for capital
commitment of HKI.4 million representing property, plant and equipment in respect of
the renovation of Between (Wanchai) which opened in February 2021 (31 December
2019: HK$4.0 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities (31
December 2019: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's pledged bank deposits in the amount of HK$9.5
million was pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities (31 December 2019:
HK$4.5 million).

24 | JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R &EBARA T

EARE - EXWBRHEHERT

B BRRMEIMBEEN  BE
2000F 12 A3IBIEFE  AERTEIME
ARE  EAREREENBRARINEB D
il o

BEXEE

FR2020F 12 A31 8 - REEF2021 F2 AR
K Between (BT ) ETTRHATEEBEBEY
¥ BERIENEITOERBEEREE
|ABEBT(2019F 128318 40888
L) °

FAREE

20205 12 A31 B - ANEEW EE M E KK
KREE Q019128318 « &) -

BEEEKR

R20205F 12 A31 B - AEE®HDERRITHE
RRISABBT  (EAAEERITRENE
H(019F 128318 45H58ET) °




BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Pui Yain (“Ms. Wong”), aged 42, is the founder and a controlling shareholder.

She is the Group's chairperson, chief executive officer, executive Director, the chairperson
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the
legal compliance committee. She is currently responsible for overall strategic planning and
management of the Group's business development and operations and is also a director

of each of the members of the Group.

Born in Singapore and educated in The University of Wester Australia with a Bachelor's
Degree in Economics, Ms Wong is an entrepreneur and restaurateur with 20 years of
experience. She was awarded “Asia’s Best Young Entrepreneurs” by Businessweek 2008
and “Rising Star Award — Women in Asia” by Financial Times/RBS Coutt's 2009. In 2013
she was named one of the 10 “Women of our Time" by South China Morning Post,
“Restaurateur of the Year" by Hong Kong Tatler in 2016 and “Young Entrepreneur of the
Year" by Asia Corporate Excellence & Sustainability 2017.

Ms. Wong is an executive member to the Chamber Women Executives Club (WEC) and
a primary member of the YPO Hong Kong Chapter Limited. She was appointed as a non-
executive Director of Gameone Holdings Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8282) on
30 September 2015.

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry, aged 47, is the Group's executive Director, senior operations
director and the chairperson of the legal compliance committee. She is responsible for
formulation of corporate development strategies, execution of daily management and

administration of business and operations, and regulatory compliance.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREERE

She obtained a higher diploma in hotel and catering management from the Hong Kong
Technical College in July 1996. She has approximately |9 years of experience in the food
and beverage industry. From November 1996 to April 2011, she worked at Gaia Group.
She served Va Bene Ristorante from November 1996 to February 2001. She worked
as an assistant manager of Gaia Ristorante from March 2001 to March 2008. Her last
position was operations manager of Gaia Group. During her office in Gaia Group, she was
primarily responsible for purchasing, staff hiring, manager and staff training, menu planning
and daily operation of eight restaurants in Hong Kong and two restaurants in Shanghai, the
PRC. She was also awarded “Most Influential Woman in Hospitality 2018 — Hong Kong”
by APAC Insiderin 2018,

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (“Mr. Chanmugam”), aged 44, is the Group's

independent non-executive Director, the chairperson of the remuneration committee and
a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee. He is responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee, the

remuneration committee and the nomination committee.

Mr. Chanmugam joined Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong in July 2000 and worked for
Deutsche Bank AG in Singapore as vice president from May 2002 to September 2005. Mr.
Chanmugam served as a vice president (fixed income, currency & commodities division)
based in Tokyo in Goldman Sachs (Asia) LL.C. from October 2005 to September 2007.
From October 2007 to May 2013, he was relocated to Hong Kong and his last position
was managing director (fixed income, currency & commodities division). In August 2014,
Mr. Chanmugam established Elezeno Capital Limited and acted as its director. In July 2000,
Mr. Chanmugam obtained his bachelor's degree in mathematics and economics from the

London School of Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (“Mr. Leung”), aged 57, is the Group's independent non-
executive Director, the chairperson of the audit committee and a member of the
nomination committee and the legal compliance committee. He is responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee, the

legal compliance committee and the nomination committee.

Mr. Leung graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in May 1986 with a
first class honour in Bachelor of Business Administration. He has been a member of the
HKICPA (formerty known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since 1989 and a CFA
charterholder since 2008.

Mr. Leung has more than 20 years of senior management experience in the financial
markets. He is currently the vice chairman and chief executive officer of Venture Smart
Financial Group. He had been the managing director of Crosby Securities Limited and
SAIL Advisors Limited respectively, a director of Deutsche Bank, the head of finance of
NatWest Securities Asia Limited and the regional financial controller of Lehman Brothers
Asia Holdings Limited. Mr. Leung was an executive director of AID Life Science Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Crosby Capital Limited), a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8088) from October 2010 to September 201 3.

Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony, aged 50, is the Group's independent non-executive Director
and a member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee. He is responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee

and the remuneration committee.

He has more than | | years of experience in the finance industry. He has been with UOB
Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited since December 2003 and is currently an associate director
of UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited. He has been licensed to engage in Type | (dealing
in securities) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") since December 2003. He was awarded a bachelor
of arts degree in economics from Pepperdine University in the United States in April
1995.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Woon Wai Ming Germaine (“Ms. Woon"), aged 28, is the Group's Head of

Marketing & Communications. She spearheads the marketing, communications and PR

across the portfolio.

Ms. Woon is a native Hong Kong-er through and through, having grown up in the city and
educated abroad, she is well versed in all its facets and intricacies. This naturally led her to

a marketing career that spans many international revered brands and regional favourites.

Ms. Woon graduated with a Higher diploma in Hotel Management from HKUSPACE,
which led her to attain a Bachelor's degree in International Hospitality Management from
the University of Plymouth and a Master's degree in Marketing Management from City
University of Hong Kong. She has been working in the F&B industry for the past 10 vears,
with experience in marketing and PR for international brands like Bouijis (Hong Kong),

Shangri-la and Buzz Concepts.

Ms. TSANG Yin Mei, aged 59, is the Group's administrative manager and member
of the legal compliance committee. She is responsible for the office management and
administration of the Group. She has over 31 years of experience in secretarial work,
including secretarial support in trade/logistics firms. She had worked for Citizen Watches
(HK) Ltd., Update Electronics, Reliance Agency Ltd, Capital Asia Trading Co Ltd and
Orbotech Pacific Ltd. as a clerk, secretary and executive assistant, respectively, between
June 1982 and September 2001. Further, she had also worked for PC Asia Limited as an

administrative manager.

She obtained a diploma in business secretarial studies from the Hong Kong Young
Women's Christian Association Professional & Business Youth Department in May 1982,
and passed the Office Practice and Secretarial Practice courses offered by the Hong Kong
Baptist College Division of Continuing Education with distinction in April 1986 and with
credit in August 1986, respectively.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YEUNG Tsz Kit Alban (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 42, was appointed as the Group's
company secretary on 2 December 2020. Mr. Yeung is a fellow member of both The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) in England and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr.
Yeung is also a fellow member of the CPA Australia and an associate of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. He has over |5 years of experience in corporate
secretarial practice, accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Yeung is also a company secretary

of Yik Wo International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock

E

Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to establish and ensure high standards of corporate governance
and adopt sound corporate governance practices. The Company's corporate governance
practices are based on the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix |5 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Directors strongly believe that reasonable and sound corporate governance practices are
essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and enhancing shareholders'

interests.

The Directors consider that during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report, except for the deviation from code provision A2.| of the CG Code,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code. Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairperson and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Ms. Wong Pui Yain is the chairperson and the chief executive officer of the Company.
As Ms. Wong Pui Yain manages the Group's business development and operations on a
day-to-day basis and the Group's business is rapidly expanding, the Board believes that
with Ms. Wong Pui Yain's extensive experience and knowledge in the business of the
Group, vesting the roles of both chairperson and chief executive officer in Ms. Wong Pui
Yain is beneficial to the business prospects, management and operations of the Group as
it will (i) strengthen her leadership in the Group; and (ii) allow for efficient and effective
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the deviation from provision A2.| of the CG Code is appropriate in such

circumstances.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include the formulation of the Group's overall
strategies, the setting of management targets and the supervision of management
performance. The management is delegated with the authority and the responsibility by
the Board for the management and administration of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees of the Company.

Further details of the Board committees are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the
Company by providing direction and supervision of the Company's business and affairs,
and the ultimate responsibility for day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the management. To this end, periodic financial and operational information are
provided to the Board for assessing the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries.
For significant matters that are specifically delegated by the Board, the management
must report back to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group and for
providing the Board with updates in a timely manner, including giving an assessment of the

Company's performance and position to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The Board is responsible for, amongst others, performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include:

(8)  developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations;

(b)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors and senior management;

(c)  reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to the Directors and employees; and

(e)  reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the

corporate governance report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

As of the date of this report, the Board is comprised of 5 Directors, including 2 executive
Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors, and the Directors” details during

the year and up to the date of this report are set out as below:

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (chairman and chief executive officer)
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

All Directors have appropriate professional qualifications and/or substantive experience
and industry knowledge. The Board composition as a whole reflects an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. The composition of the Board satisfies the requirements
of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. There are three independent non-
executive Directors and at least one of them has the requisite accounting professional
qualification. With more than one-third of the members of the Board being independent
non-executive Directors, the Board has a strong independence element in terms of its

composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings a diverse
range of expertise, skills and independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's
strategies, performance, conflicts of interests and management process to ensure that the

interests of all shareholders of the Company are duly considered.

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Board of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 29 of this report. There are no family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.
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CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain was appointed as a Director on 21 August 2015 and was re-
designated as an executive Director, the chief executive officer and the chairperson of the
Board on 23 January 2018. Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry was appointed as a Director on 21

August 2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 23 January 2018,

The chairperson of the Board provides leadership to the Board and is also responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice and is responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. The executive Directors are responsible for the
implementation of the business strategies, policies and objectives set out by the Board and
are accountable to the Board for the overall operations of the Group. These functions

and responsibilities are currently being shared by the management team.

According to paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairperson and the chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During
the year, Ms. Wong Pui Yain, the chairperson of the Board, is responsible for overseeing
the overall financial matters of the Group. The day-to-day operations of the Group are
delegated to another executive Director, Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, and the management

of the Group is responsible for different aspects of the business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong

Tony were appointed as the independent non-executive Directors on 23 January 2018.

With their professional knowledge and experience, the independent non-executive
Directors serve an important function of advising the management of the Group on
strategy development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards in financial
and other mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole. They also
participate in the Company's various committees including the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the legal compliance

committee (the “Legal Compliance Committee”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive Directors a
written confirmation of his or her independence in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM

Listing Rules, and therefore, considers each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”) provide that at each annual
general meeting ("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject to retirement at

an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

All of the Directors including both the executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for a specific term. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
period of three years subject to the rotation requirement and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated by either party giving at least one month's notice in writing. In
accordance with the Company's Articles and, at each AGM of the Company, the

Directors will retire from office by rotation but will be eligible for re-election.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes to and developments of
the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other relevant regulatory regimes
to the Directors and provides written materials on the professional knowledge and latest
developments of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and responsibilities.
Up to the date of this report, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by reading our in-house training handbook, relevant materials or attending

training seminar on the topics related to corporate governance.
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All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or reading relevant materials in

order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Yeung Tsz Kit Alban, the company secretary of the Company, complied with the

relevant professional training under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules for the year.

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETINGS

Schedules and draft agenda of each Board meeting are normally made available to
Directors in advance. At least 14 days' notice should be given for a regular Board meeting.

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notices are generally given.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached are duly kept by the company secretary at the meetings and are

available for inspection by the Directors.

The Avrticles contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or

any of their associates have a material interest.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to
all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to
keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and the financial position of the

Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

Details of Directors’ attendance at the AGM, Board and Board Committee meetings in

the year 2020 are set out in the following table:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

EFHERE

TREHNEZ00FEERERFERE -

ESeNESRBOERNAR

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTEERE
Legal
General Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Compliance
Meetings Board Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee
ERER
REA®  ES® BHEA® HFWEAe REFE®  ZA®
Executive Directors
YTES
Ms. WONG Pui Yain [/1 10/10 - 171 [/1 11
afAZL
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry 11 10/10 - - - 11
BEEXL
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIFYTES
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 0/l 10/10 414 171 11 -
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 75 4
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric 11 10/10 4/4 - 11 /1
REBRE
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony [/1 7110 3/4 [/1 - -
WEE Keng Hiong Tony 5t 4
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee with delegated powers for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affairs. Each of the committees of the Company has been established with written terms

of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, meetings shall be held not
less than four times a year and the external auditor may request a meeting if they consider

that one is necessary.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Leung
Yuk Lun Ulric, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony and is
chaired by Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop
and review the policies of the Group and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditor's remuneration, the
independence of the auditor, BDO Limited ("BDO""), and recommended the Board to re-
appoint BDO as the Company's auditor for the year ending 31 December 2021, which is
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which opined that applicable accounting standards and

requirements have been complied with and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the
Remuneration Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the

GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, a meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors: Ms. Wong Pui Yain, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr.

Wee Keng Hiong Tony and is chaired by Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include without limitation: (a)
making recommendations to the Directors regarding the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all the Directors and the senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management of the Group; (c) reviewing and approving the management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
and (d) considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible participants
pursuant to the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder of the

Company on 23 January 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme).

The Remuneration Committee determines Directors’ remuneration by reference to
the benchmarking of the market. The Company also considers individual Director's
competence, duties, responsibilities, performance and the results of the Group in

determining the exact level of remuneration for each Director.
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Senior Management’s remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Group's Senior Management for the year ended 3

December 2020 falls within the following bands:

BREERENHM

HZE2020F 2R3 HIEEFE mMAEESR
EEEBYT NOHWENLTERER

HK$ Number of individuals
BT AE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T 3

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set

out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and the senior management
was based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market conditions.
Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are linked to the performance of the

Group and the individual performance of the Directors and the senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with paragraph A5.1 of the CG Code. The terms of reference setting out the Nomination
Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, a meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.
The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent

non-executive Directors Ms. Wong Pui Yain, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Devin

Nijanthan Chanmugam and is chaired by Ms. Wong Pui Yain.
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The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to (a) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; () assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to

the appointment or reappointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the Board diversity policy as well as discussed matters regarding the retirement

and re-election of Directors.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a legal compliance committee on 23 January 2018. The
terms of reference setting out the Legal Compliance Committee's authority, duties and

responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance Committee, a meeting shall
be held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall

SO request.

The Legal Compliance Committee consists of Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, Ms. Wong Pui
Yain and Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and is chaired by Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry. Please
refer to the section headed “Business — Internal control and risk management measures — |.
Establishment of the legal compliance committee” in the Prospectus for further details of

the principal responsibilities of the Legal Compliance Committee.

The primary function of the Legal Compliance Committee is overseeing compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and the adequacy and

effectiveness of regulatory compliance procedures and system.

The Legal Compliance Committee has reviewed and is satisfied with the compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and the adequacy and

effectiveness of the regulatory compliance procedures and system.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the audited consolidated financial

statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for ensuring that the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for each financial year are prepared to
provide a true and fair view of the state of affairs, the financial results and cash flows of
the Group in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and the
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2020, the Board has adopted appropriate and consistent
accounting policies and made prudent, fair and reasonable judgments and estimates. The
Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which reflect with
reasonable accuracy the state of affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movement
of the Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable

accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability

to continue as a going concem.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The
statement of auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the audited consolidated

financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's auditor are set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report with full text included in pages 87 to 95 of this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration for the audit and non-audit

services provided by the Company's auditor to the Group was as follows:

Preeifps

B ETEN £

REZE2020F 12831 BIEFE » ARRIZE
EmAEBEIRHET MR RISVB £ m
"|T :

Type of services Amount
PR35 25 &8
HK$'000
TAET

Annual audit service for the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12 A31 BIEFERFE R IR
~BDO Limited —BAUERREHMEHHERAF 730
Non-audit services JEST AR (M) 236
Total st 966

Note: Non-audit services include tax compliance services by BDO Limited for the year ended 31
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate goverance committee has been established and the Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company's policies, practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management, the Company's

policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Directors review the Group's corporate governance policies and compliance with the
CG Code each financial year and comply with the “Comply or Explain” principle in the

corporate governance report which is or will be included in the reports of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with the requirement as

set out in the CG Code, which is summarised below:

The Board diversity policy of the Company specifies that in designing the composition of
the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All Board members” appointment will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates for the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, culture, ethnicity

and educational background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The Company discloses the composition of the Board in the corporate governance
report every year and the Nomination Committee oversees the implementation of the
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be

required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all of the Directors complied with such required standard of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding directors” securities transactions during the year ended 31

December 2020 and up to the date of this report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
and in particular, through AGMs or other general meetings to communicate with the

Shareholders and encourage their participation.

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for separate issues proposed
at the general meetings. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each

Shareholders’ meeting.
The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor communication
policy and to update investors on relevant information on the Group's business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
(@)  Significant Changes in the Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there has been no significant change in
the constitutional documents of the Company. The Articles are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

(b)  General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company's AGM will be held on 24 May 2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(@)

46

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company. Shareholders also have the right to propose a person for election as
a Director, the procedures are available on the websites of the Company and the

Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the extent such
information is publicly available to the company secretary who is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the Board's purview to the
executive Directors of the Company, communications relating to matters within
a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the chairperson of the appropriate
committee, and communication relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, enquiries and consumer complaints, to the appropriate management of
the Company, in writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.

Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating to the operations
and the management of the Group to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings.
The proposals shall be sent to the company secretary by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary
general meeting by following the procedures set out in “"Convening an

extraordinary general meeting” above.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key to enhancing
investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and investing public. The Company updates its shareholders
on its latest business developments and financial performance through annual, interim and
quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company (www.jiagroup.co) has provided

an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the approval of the shareholders and requirements of relevant laws, the
Company shall pay annual dividends to the shareholders if the Group is profitable, its
operational environment is stable and there is no significant investment or commitment
made by the Group. The Company's ability to pay dividends will depend upon, among
other things, the Group's actual and expected financial performance, retained earnings
and distributable reserves, liquidity position, future cash requirements and availability,
restriction on payments of dividends that may be imposed by the Group's lenders, the

general market conditions and any other factor that the Board may consider appropriate.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends under the dividend policy are subject to
the Board's determination that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yeung Tsz Kit Alban, the company secretary, is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures,
and the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. All Directors have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary to ensure that the Board procedures
and all applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the company secretary is responsible for

facilitating communications among Directors as well as with management.

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the company secretary undertook more than
I'5 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing

Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and intemal control systems of the Group. The Group's systems
of risk management and internal control include a defined management structure with
limits of authority, which is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for intemal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

achievement of the Group's objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority has been established. The division/department head of each
core operating division/department is accountable for the conduct and performance of
the respective division/department within the agreed strategies (which are set by the

respective head together with the Board) and reports directly to the Board.

The Group has in place a policy on the handling and disclosure of inside information,
setting out the appropriate intemal control and reporting systems to identify and assess
potential inside information. The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the handling
and dissemination of inside information to the executive directors and management
team who will maintain appropriate and effective reporting procedures responding to
the development or circumstances of the Group in timely manner so that the Board can

decide whether disclosure is necessary.

48 | JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED R &EBAERA T

AEHME
RAMEG TREEAERCEEREEN
EZeRHERIBREZTSETARER
B -BEREM  RAUKRRH - -FEES
ﬁﬂ%ﬁ@?%imL%&%Fu$%§$
BZERFRMBEREEESRET It
%’“TwiEMﬁE%$ZﬁM&E@F
ZERER -

HZE2020F 1231 HIEEE - RAIMEDR
TEGEM AR BIEES. IS IGEFT THRIB 15/ B Ay
AAEEE -

RREER AR
EFLRHARRU AR ASERENA

BHREBRERERAEZERS - AEEHA
AAEIE&W_LBEkTI%IVL Tﬁ—1/ﬁ\ﬁﬁ%§$§
REOAEERRE  EEREXEKE

B REEETREBEERLRE  HXE
TFEE R AT R B AR 4L AT (A R A sk it
BMAAENBER  ARBRETHEBE
&&%ﬁ°/%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁik%§@ﬁﬁ
BREHAE (BIHEE)MRE - LERE (M
R EERRAE &$El* ERER
MR °

ASERRY-EABRE
$ﬂﬁ&&f\%§&%@°

$E/JH%EM%*M' T%%ﬁ/ﬁﬁ
MERRRRER  TERRAEFSRS -

AEECHERERFEANRHEEMEE
DIBEE N EPEEIE K i R AT AREE KA
BENBHE -EFSCEERTESFRE
BEREREREMARTES  ESEFT
ERERARBERIBENOEE RAMR
LHEF  #MSCEFSERRTRERD L

[

JaiEd



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the course of conducting the business, the Group is exposed to various types of risks.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the following principal risks of the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and

compliance risks.

Risk Areas
Bk EE

Principal Risks
TERR
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&%Tﬂi%ﬂ D BREEER - 2ER
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Strategic Risks

reputation risk

BiR R

Operational Risks

2ERR BPNHETR - TH - BARMREGTT

Financial Risks

Lupi e

Liquidity risk; credit risk; interest rate risk; inflation risk

/}IL@J ﬁ%ﬂ 1;‘%“ PR *ljtﬂ PR @HEEW&

Compliance Risks

HHFBROSRIE - RIFARMEEP @K - MGHFER

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new technologies and customers' taste; market competition risk,

% BERER

Risk related to occupational safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances related to employment; change

of the GEM Listing Rules and relevant company regulations and ordinances

AHRER HR XL MEFRARNER -

B4

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the Group and it has
delegated to executive management to carry out the risk identification and monitoring
procedures. The objectives of the risk management are to enhance the governance and
corporate management processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable

levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, amongst others, (i) an annual risk
identification and analysis exercise which involves assessment of the consequences and
likelihood of risks and the development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks;
and (i) an annual review of the implementation of the risk management plans and fine

tuning of the implementation plan when necessary.
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During the year under review, the management had outsourced its internal audit function
to an independent internal audit firm (the “Internal Auditor”). The Internal Auditor
reported directly to the Audit Committee on all internal audit matters. The internal audit
plan was submitted to the Audit Committee for approval prior to the commencement
of the internal audit work. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal audit report
and monitored the implementation of the improvements required on internal control

weaknesses identified.

Even though the Group does maintain an internal audit function, the Board has overall
responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the review of the Group's internal control systems, the Directors
were satisfied that effective internal control measures as appropriate to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 were implemented properly and that no significant areas

of weaknesses were identified.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will continue to review its corporate governance standards on a timely basis
and the Board endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the

required practices and standards including the provisions of the CG Code.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERRS
ABOUT THIS REPORT

Jia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report, with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guidelines as described in Appendix 20
to the GEM Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange").

Reporting Boundary

The Group was listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange in 2018 with stock code of
8519. The Group is a well-established restaurant group in Hong Kong with award-winning
restaurants serving a variety of cuisines including Chinese, Spanish, Italian, French, Nyonya,

Thai, and specialty coffee under different brands and themes.

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two subject areas, namely,
environmental, and social, of its food and beverages operations (“F&B Operations” as
listed below, that contributed to a revenue of HK$173.3 million) and its headquarters in
Hong Kong from | January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period"), unless

otherwise stated.

The Group's F&B Operations include the following: 208 Duecento Otto, 22 Ships, Bibi
& Baba, Chachawan, Duddell's (Airport), Duddell's (Central), Louise, Mak Mak, MONO;
And O and Between (which commenced operation during the Reporting Period); Behind
Bars, Commissary and Old Bailey (which ceased operation during the Reporting Period);
and Meen & Rice (which ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group during the Reporting
Period) .
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ESG Management Approach

Being part of the food and beverages industry implies that the Group's operations could
affect a wide variety of people, the environment in adjacent areas and their inhabitants.
With due consideration, the Group is committed to putting emphasis on employees’
health and safety, being particular to resources used (including food ingredients and

energy) and attending to people living in nearby communities.

Such commitment is enacted by closely following and strictly complying with all relevant
laws, regulations and policies. It is expected that a series of more detailed policies and
targets regarding such issues will be developed for better measurement of the Group's
ESG performance. The Board will continuously explore ways to further strengthen the

ESG governance of the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognises its responsibility and accountability to all our stakeholders. To

understand and address the key concerns of different stakeholders, the Group has been
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maintaining close communications with its stakeholders. It will continue to increase the fﬂ}%@ A TRREBAR T EMITMEE
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation to achieve long term prosperity. HEBERENEFEBRSNEHEBE E’J
Stakeholders' expectations have been taken into consideration by utilising diversified LERE - LNERARAZE - $'§ B2 MA
engagement methods and communications channels as shown below: TIZ TSR ERBRRE  ZEF
sSARE MRS
Stakeholders Possible Issues of Concern Communication Channels
FAEE BEMIEE BERE
Government/regulatory authorities . Compliance with policies and regulations Routine reporting and disclosure
. Operational compliance . Announcements
. Press releases
Y/ B « BTHEREMRD « PlITHRERKE
© ARKEE YN
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RE  #HERERRE

Stakeholders

M AEE

Possible Issues of Concern

BEWIEE

Communication Channels

BERE

Customers

BF

Suppliers

R

Employees

Shareholders and investors

BER KB EE

Food and services quality

Delivery time

Supplier management

Customer service

HEmEE

P RS

Rights and benefits
Remuneration and compensation
Career development and training
Working hours

Occupational health and safety
Working environment
G

Bl (E

B R R

TR

BxEmiss

THERE

Corporate governance system
Business strategies and performance
Corporate transparency and reputation
BEERGIE

RBRIE LKA
bREAENEER
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Company website

Phone and emails communication
Communication with staff
Customers comment cards
NGIFEN
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EFERR

Supplier assessment

Site visits
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Employee training

Employee communication meetings
Performance reviews

Union activities

Employee handbook
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Stakeholders Possible Issues of Concern

R HERERRE

Communication Channels

FNEERE BERIEE BERE
Community . Community environment . Community activities
. Employment and community development e Employee voluntary activities
. Social welfare . Community welfare subsidies
. Charitable donations
Mt « HERS . HRED

© EREHEZR
. HEEN

The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve its ESG performance
and create greater value for the wider community. Feedback on the Group's approach
and performance relating to ESG are welcomed. Please contact the Group by email at
info@jiagroup.co. Your feedback and suggestions would be of great value to the Group in

its journey of continuous improvement in sustainability.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group complies with all requirements relating to air emission, greenhouse gases, and
hazardous waste regulated under relevant laws in Hong Kong, such as the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), and the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358).

No case of non-compliance was noted.

Air Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group emitted 0.08 kg of sulphur oxides (SOx)
and 32.92 kg of nitrogen oxides (NOx) from the consumption of Towngas in its
F&B Operations' kitchens. Oily fume, which causes odour to be emitted to nearby
neighbourhoods, is also emitted from the Group's kitchens. The Group is committed
to reducing and better controlling such emissions through various measures, such as
installation of efficient filttering equipment and regular maintenance of ventilation systems. It
also selects restaurant locations which are distant from densely populated neighbourhoods

to reduce nuisance caused to nearby residents.
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Use of Energy and Water

Involved in the food and beverage industry, the most significant resources used by the
Group are energy, powered by Towngas and electricity, and water. During the Reporting
Period, 8,230,263 megajoules (M]) of Towngas, 2,470,313 kWh of electricity, and 65,727
m® of water were consumed for the Group's operations. Altogether, they contributed to

2,524 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.

FEREERR K

R (BRI RENES) RKRASERE
BHTEGANREZAR - RREH X
SEMEEEFEERS230263KEE B
2470313 F ELB Bk65, 72750 oK » A fESE
BERBYNS 4N —SILIREE o

Sources of GHG emissions Emission Sub-total  Proportion
BERBHHRE BB et xat]
(intCOx)  (in tCOse) (in %)
(St (M|
E8) E8) (%)
Scope | #E Combustion of Towngas B R 43772 43772 17%
Direct emission BEEHR
Scope 2 #ED Purchased electricity BEMEN ,946.39 2,048.75 81%
Energy indirect emission  BZIRMEMEHER  Purchased Towngas BENER 10236
Scope 3 #[E3 Flectricity used for processing  ERFF2RMY,/ £ =4 27.87 37.07 2%
Other indirect emission ~ FAh EEEHERR fresh water by government  EFAE IR IR K
departments/third parties
Flectricity used for processing  ERFFERFY,/ £ =4 9.20
sewage by government ERENRIETK
departments/third parties
Total o 252354 252354 100%
Intensity (tCO,e/HK$ | million revenue) mE(W_altirgs,/ | BEETRA) 14.58

Note I: Emission factors were made with reference to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and
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their referred documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.
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Note 2. Scope | Combustion of Towngas includes GHG emitted during combustion of Towngas
within the organisational boundaries; Scope 2 purchased Towngas includes GHG emitted

within Towngas Ltd when Towngas was produced.

R #HERERBE

M &@E I MEREReERNEEERNREER
R ERE  SEREENEREE
REEE R Towngas LdAZBEEREAZER

28

Az ©

Energy Consumption BEROH Original Unit MWh Intensity (MWh/$1M)
RIGEM KR BE KRR/ 1 5EERT)

Electricity EV)) 2470313 kWh 247031 14.28
2470313 F ELBF 247031 14.28

Towngas BR 174,666 M| 2,286.18 1321
174,666 6 FEH 2286.18 13.21

Total st 4,756.50 27.49

The Group adopts a holistic management approach to reduce energy consumption,
thereby reducing GHG emissions. Some of the measures include prioritising energy
efficient hardware and equipment, such as air conditioners and refrigerators with Grade |
energy labels, when a replacement is necessary; designing restaurants’ layout and workflow
with energy-saving considerations; and encouraging employees to adopt green working
practices. The same approach applies to water conservation, where advanced technology
is deployed and water saving behaviours are promoted to employees of the Group. In the
upcoming vear, the Group will explore opportunities of replacing and installing equipment,
such as flow controllers and efficient energy systems, in its restaurants’ kitchens for

improved energy and water efficiency.

Water Discharge

Water pollution control licenses issued by the Environmental Protection Department of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region have been obtained for all the Group's F&B
Operations. The Group has installed sufficient equipment to ensure sewage is properly

processed before discharge.
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RE HERERES

Waste Management

The Group complied with the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) when handling and disposing of waste. The major types of waste generated from
the Group's operations were waste cooking oil, food waste from the Group's diners, and
bottles form pre-packaged beverages. During the Reporting Period, the F&B Operations!
of the Group recorded a generation of 8,584 litres of waste cooking oil, which indicates
an intensity of 52.9 litres/HK$ | million revenue. All waste cooking oil were handled by

qualified collectors and recycled into biodiesel eventually.

For food waste, although the Group cannot control how much food diners consume,
employees are trained to always offer diners an option to take leftover food home
to reduce wastage. Operation manuals and training on food ordering and processing
guidelines are available for employees to study how food waste reduction can be
promoted. Considering that some diners may have a smaller appetite, several F&B
Operations of the Group, such as Between, have established recipes and portion controls
to avoid serving excessive food. The Group expects more of its operations to adopt such

practice to reduce waste produced.

During the Reporting Period, the Group introduced Nordagq, a tap water filtering system,
in some of its dining venues, such as Louise, And 0, Duddell’s, etc, to reduce bottle
waste that would otherwise have been generated from serving still or sparking water. This

practice is expected to reduce waste generated significantly in the long term.

To carry out administrative activities in offices, paper is consumed, of which the Group is
taking an active role to control. Reduction methods, such as duplex printing, reusing one-
sided paper, recycling used paper and reading electronically, are encouraged. The Group
has yet to establish an effective recording system for waste generation but expects it
to be ready in the next Reporting Period. No hazardous wastes were generated during
the Reporting Period due to the Group's business nature. In the upcoming year, the
investigation of further waste reduction initiatives and recycling outlets will be one of the

Group's top priorities to limit its part in putting stress on the landfills.

Excluding generation from And O, Behind Bars and Between, which pass their waste cooking
oil to communal grease traps, and do not have readily available record of their respective

waste cooking oil generation.

58 | JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &R &EBAERA T

BUEE

AEEREEREEENEETESANSE
4E(EMREED) - AEBEEELNE
SEMAER AEEREENRIERK
MEBBESRE - RREY  AEBERE
BEES S8R BEASIAIBE
BILRA - AR HEA EREKA RE
12 - WHRAREUWREFR AL

RRYESRM S - BANREELEHHE
EFNRE  BREECEIBINGRAME

ERZHEFRRYETITE  #RRDR
E-AKENESRHEEFMREFARY
BB RINTIESI ST - UHBEEFR D
RYREBNAE ERIFHDAZENR
EUER)  AEENZEEZRER (HlW
Between) B I ] R 75 & FA 2 12 il DA o fit e
BERY - AEEEHHRE S EBKFPHEN
AMUELAR D EE R REYD ©

RBRER - REBEREE S AE5H (flm
Louise * And O ~ #EF GBS ) B KB
B R BT Nordaqg + LA A 2 827K SR K
PREEMEM - RRERE - BHEEEK
R E ERIREY) ©

AEENTERLEHEELESR  A&HE
IEEmREE R HIERE - ARBEHER
ENEmITED - EEITEIR —IRER - BEARE
BRHEBEFESTEARDBERE - A%
Bl AREYELRIAMOLERLE B
BN TERSHAIRALR - ARAKE
MEBLE  RNBSHAAKEYEELS
EBEY - RN —FE - AEEESHTE
—PHBERERERDKBHEARERT
tEZ— AR SHEEER B S -

TEIFEAND O * Behind Bars } BetweenE 4 K
BEm o BB mREA AR BYES
BEESRBE RN ESLE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Use of Packaging Materials

To better maintain the quality and ensure the safety of the Group's food products, the
F&B Operations uses certain packaging materials including takeaway boxes, plastic bags, as
well as various disposables in the Group's restaurant operations. The Group understands
the environmental impacts of such materials, and therefore has set out guidelines for its
employees regarding usage minimisation and encourages customers to reuse and recycle
as much as possible. The Group understands it may be hard for customers to reuse and
recycle; hence, recyclable packaging materials or those made from environmentally friendly
substances are preferred. During the Reporting Period, the Group purchased significantly
more packaging materials, mainly because of the increase in takeaway orders due to the
temporary dine-in ban imposed by authorities under the COVID-19 pandemic. Yet, the
actual amount of packaging materials procured is not readily available since the surge in

demand made it hard to properly record the actual amount used.

Managing Impacts on the Environment and Natural Resources

Since all F&B Operations are located at prime locations, the Group is aware of the
importance of environmental management and has developed mechanisms for identifying,
assessing, and mitigating the environmental risks arising from the Group's operations. The
Group did not note any material non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations
during the Reporting Period. As for the sources of ingredients and food used for preparing
the restaurants’ dishes, the Group upholds a principle of avoiding the use of ingredients
that may bring harm to the environment or natural habitats. When possible, the F&B
Operations source ingredients from sustainable sources, such as those that are Marine
Stewardship Council (MSC) certified, or those that are organically farmed. The Group
will continue to examine the possibility of promoting dishes that take into account their

environmental impacts.
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RE HERERES

SOCIAL

The Group aims to ensure that the health, safety, and welfare of its employees are well
taken care of and the Group acknowledges its responsibility towards employees who
may be affected by its activities. The Group regards legislative compliance as a minimum,
and whenever possible, the Group seeks to implement higher health and safety standards

throughout the Group.
Employment

The Group has established a comprehensive human resources policy to govern the
Group's recruitment and dismissal procedures, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare in accordance
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has
not identified any material non-compliance with employment-related laws and regulations

during the Reporting Period.

The Group offers competitive packages, as well as development opportunities to the
Group's employees to attract talents. The Group respects everyone and prohibits
discrimination of any kind. The Group ensures equal opportunities in all of the Group's
human resources’ practices, regardless of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability, family
status, race, etc. To better recognise the contribution of the Group's employees, the
Group has established a fair performance evaluation mechanism to promote and award

employees on a regular basis.

As of 31 December 2020, the F&B Operations had a total of 337 employees.
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TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
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RE HERERES

Workplace Health and Safety

The Group seeks to create a safe working environment for the Group's employees.
The Group has established the Health and Safety at Work Policy to provide guidelines
and raise the awareness of safety in the Group's restaurants in accordance with the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
Accidents are reported to management and handled promptly in accordance with
the Group's standard procedures. The Group has also formed the Health and Safety
Committee to oversee the related risks and meet with the operation teams regularly to

understand their concerns on the working environment.

To further mitigate the health and safety risks in the Group's restaurants, staff are required
to attend trainings on health and safety-related topics, such as first aid, fire evacuation, and
other emergency procedures upon entry to the Group, as well as regularly during their

employment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material noncompliance

with occupational safety and health-related laws and regulations.
Training and Development

To maintain a high level of service standard and to enhance its employees' know-
how and competence, the Group provides on-the-job trainings to employees working
under different sections of the restaurant operations. Topics include food preparation
and preservation, customer services, quality control, various dietary requirements, etc.
Each week, each F&B Operation holds internal briefing to give staff frequent reminders
of workflows or procedures to take note of. The Group strives to ensure that all its
employees receive adequate training, both at the time when they join the Group, and on

a continuing basis.
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Procurement Management

The Group requires its suppliers to deliver services or products that meet the Group's
internal quality standards and relevant regulatory requirements in Hong Kong. To ensure
that the Group's suppliers maintain a desired level of quality and would be of assistance
to the F&B Operations in delivering cuisines that are of high quality and are safe for
consumption, the Group only purchases from pre-approved suppliers who has passed the
Group's initial assessment. When applicable, the Group prioritises suppliers which have
attained certain certifications or those which meet specified food standards. Prior to using
suppliers’ food products, inspection needs to be carried out by the Group's chefs; food
supplies that do not meet the Group's standards are returned to the suppliers. To ensure
food prepared are consistent, regular meetings and performance review of suppliers are
performed on a timely basis. Suppliers who fail to meet the Group's quality standard
are removed from the Group's supplier list. To reduce carbon footprint, the Group
usually procures from local suppliers when possible. The F&B Operations are looking into
establishing cooperation with local farms to secure a sustainable and stable supply of safe

and fresh ingredients.

Dining Experience

The Group strives to give diners the ultimate experience where they would leave only
with a satisfied stomach and great memories. To achieve such goal, the Group delivers
high quality food and beverage services through understanding diners” expectations and
innovation. The former is done by consistently communicating with diners to understand
their preferences and special dietary requirements relating to allergies, religion and beliefs,
etc,; whereas the latter is executed by emphasising the use of fresh and healthy ingredients
and re-designing menus quarterly to ensure a fresh and enjoyable taste buds stimulating

experience for all visitors.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, food preparation has been a challenge across
operations since the increase in take-away orders indicates more unforeseeable variables
with food delivered outside of restaurants. Yet, the F&B Operations has been vigilant in
implementing all necessary measures in its capacity to prevent any potential food safety
risks occurring due to transport of food. With due care given, the Group had not noted of

any complaints relating to food delivered.
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RE HERERES

To provide visitors an excellent experience, customer service is another key element
of the F&B Operations. To enhance employees’ competence in serving with confidence
and dealing with queries, training is arranged to refine their techniques. Any complaints
received and relevant performance of each operation are reported to senior management
daily such that the Group can discuss on how improvements can be made. Guaranteeing

the F&B Operations’ quality of food and services will remain a top priority of the Group.

Customer Safety and Food Hygiene

The F&B Operations maintain a high food hygiene and safety standard in kitchens and
dining areas by implementing appropriate internal control and management systems.
Sufficient and adequate training are provided to the Group's staff to equip them with
knowledge on proper food handling. During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
identified any cases of material non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to food

hygiene matters.

When the COVID-19 pandemic hit, the health and safety of diners remained the Group's
top concern. The F&B Operations invested resources and time in safeguarding interests of
diners, by disinfecting restaurants frequently, sourcing all necessary protective equipment,
such as surgical masks and hand sanitisers, for employees to prevent a potential spread
of the disease, and providing diners mask holders and any necessary protective gears on

request.

Advertising and Menu Setting

In accordance with the Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Group ensures that the contents of its advertisements and menus truly reflect
only facts and are consistent with the Group's services and products without exaggeration.
The Group has not identified any material non-compliance with advertising and labelling-

related laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Data Privacy

The Group is committed to protecting the privacy of its customers, business partners,
and staff, and strictly follows the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“PDPQ") in the collection, processing and use of their personal
data. Employees are expected to respect privacy and keep personal data obtained, held,
and processed during the business process confidential in accordance with relevant terms
and conditions as set out in the employment contract and internal policies. At no given
time shall such information be disclosed or used beyond the purpose of the collection.
Any breach of such policies may result in termination of employment without prior notice.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not note of any non-compliance with the
PDPO.

Anti-Corruption

The Group implements adequate internal controls in preventing and detecting bribery,

extortion and fraud.

To prevent any bribery or kickback arrangements between the Group's employees and
suppliers, certain policies, such as supplier due diligence, segregation of duties, declaration
of conflict of interest, etc, have been set out. The employee handbook also lists out the
code of conduct that includes employees’ responsibilities and role in avoiding participation
in any misconduct. A whistle-blowing policy which allows staff to report suspicious cases
of behaviours that violate the principles of honesty and integrity is also in place. To
strengthen employees’ understanding and maintain their awareness on relevant issues, the
Group has invited the Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC") to deliver
anti-bribery talks to the Group's staff. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not

identify any material non-compliance with anti-corruption related laws and regulations.
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RE HERERES

Caring for the Community

The Group values its relationship with the community. It participates in various charitable
events to support the underprivileged and encourages its employees to perform similar
acts by donating and doing community services. It also aims at utilising its resources to
create a harmonious environment in the areas that it operates and strengthen bonding
within the Group to build the Group's brand in the neighbourhood. With increasing
awareness in sustainability promotion, the Group is looking at ways to make further
contributions. Currently at MONO, a % carbon tax is implemented and donated to
Zero Foodprint, which subsidises farmers to work on healthy soil projects. The Group
hopes to be able to team up with more organisations who share similar values in the
future to make wider impacts. It will also maintain an open channel of communication
with its stakeholders and communities to understand their motivations, goals and needs
through continuous conversation to achieve the Group's contributions in corporate social

responsibility activities.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal
activities of the Group are predominately the provision of catering and membership

services.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2020 are set out on page 96
of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years is set out on pages 197 to 200 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Use of Proceeds and Comparison of Business
Objectives with Actual Business Progress” and “Use of Proceeds from Placing of New
Shares under General Mandate” in Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group had

no definite future plans for material investments and capital assets.

USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Details of the use of proceeds and comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on

page |7 of this report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year

ended 3| December 2020 are set out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 26 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 3|

December 2020 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company are set out in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$24.3 million (2019:
HK$18.6 million).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem its listed securities, nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase, cancel or sell any of such listed securities for the year ended 3|
December 2020.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year ended 3| December 2020 and up to the

date of this report were as follows:
Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least one-third of
the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A

retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent

and meet the independent guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

(@)

Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a renewal service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 January 2021
(subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service
contract), which may be terminated by not less than one month’s notice served by
either party on the other. The appointments are subject to the provisions of the
Articles with regard to vacation of office of Directors and removal and retirement

by rotation of Directors.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a period of three years commencing from 23
January 2021 (subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant letter of appointment), which may be terminated by not less than one
month'’s notice served by either party on the other. The appointments are subject
to the provisions of the Articles with regard to vacation of office of Directors and
removal and retirement by rotation of Directors. Save for the directors’ fee, none
of the independent non-executive Directors is expected to receive any other
remuneration for holding their office as an independent non-executive Director

and a member of any board committees of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has entered into any service agreement with any

member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration Committee with

reference to the benchmarking of the market. The Company also looks into individual

Director’s competence, duties, responsibilities and performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the

Group are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are set out

on pages 25 to 29 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or an entity connected with any
of them had any material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, parent company or subsidiaries of the parent
company was a party and subsisting at any time during or at the end of the year ended 3|
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, no contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or

any of their subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT
SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2020
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company (including their
spouses or children under |8 years of age) to have any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company or any of its specified undertakings as defined in the Companies (Report of
the Board of Directors) Regulation or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not enter into or have any management
and/or administration contracts in respect of the whole or any principal business of the

Company.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan (the spouse of Ms. Wong Pui Yain) resigned as an executive
director and disposed his 15.25% shareholding in Classified Group (Holdings) Limited in
April 2020, a company engaged in the business of restaurants operation in Hong Kong.
Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any business and interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholders of the Company nor any of their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with
the business of the Group and any other conflict of interests which any such person has
or may have with the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain and Giant Mind International Limited (“Giant Mind") (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition dated 23 January 2018 (the
"Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and each of its
subsidiaries), pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders has, unconditionally
and irrevocably, undertaken to the Company in the Deed of Non-Competition that she/
it will not, and will procure her/its close associates (other than members of the Group)
not to, for herself/itself or jointly with or acting for any other person, firm or company as
shareholder(s), director(s), partner(s), agent(s), employee(s) or otherwise, and whether
or not for profit, remuneration or other purpose, directly or indirectly be involved or
engaged in or undertake any business (other than the business of the Group) that directly
or indirectly competes, or may compete, with the Group's business or undertaking (the
“Restricted Activity"), or hold shares or interest in any companies or business that
compete directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders and/or her/its close associates hold less
than 5% of the total issued shares of any company (whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange or other stock exchange) which is engaged in any business that is or may be in
competition with any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do not

control 10% or more of the composition of the board of directors of such company.
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Further, each of the Group's Controlling Shareholders has undertaken that if any new
business investment or other business opportunity relating to the Restricted Activity (the
"“Competing Business Opportunity") is identified by or made available to her/it or any
of her/its close associates, she/it shall, and shall procure that her/its close associates shall,

refer such Competing Business Opportunity to the Company on a timely basis.

For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders — Non-competition undertaking and

corporate governance measures to manage conflicts of interests” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of her/its compliance
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this report. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied by each of the Controlling Shareholders during the year

ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

3)

76

Interests and short positions of Directors and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
Directors and chief executives of the Company were taken or deemed to have
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO), (i) recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings
by directors of listed issuer as referred to in Rules 546 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing

Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares
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Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares shareholding
EEpE 5%,/ EntE RBEE BERESL
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Interest of a controlled corporation M 409,670,000 Mt 39.70%
afAzL R EE e ) =
Beneficial owner M9 67,816,000 (et 6.57%
BEREFAND (kD)
Interest of spouse No© 10,950,000 Mo 1.06%
Ao B f % ) ()
Note BizE

409,670,000 Shares are held by Giant Mind, which is solely owned by Ms. Wong
Pui Yain and 67,816,000 Shares by Ms. Wong Pui Yain in her personal capacity. Ms.
Wong Pui Yain, being spouse of Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan, is deemed to be interested in
10,950,000 shares held by Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan under the SFO.
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(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares in associated

EEERE

(i)  RELGEBLER G REHR

corporations of the Company BRI E
Percentage of
shareholding
Name of associated Number of in the associated
Name of Director corporation Capacity Shares corporation
RIEEEE
BEEpsE BB EE AR ) BB HERBDH
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Giant Mind (o9 Beneficial owner 1,000 (Mt 100%
BfELt Giant Mind ") BERBEAA i
Note BT

Giant Mind held 47.64% of issued Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and/or short positions which the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO); (i) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed
issuer as referred to in Rules 546 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Interests and short positions of the substantial shareholders and other persons

in shares and underlying shares of the Company

As at 3| December 2020, so far as it is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had or were
deemed to have interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

(i) Long position in the Shares
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AT GEEZEFADRIRHITHRAS)R
AR VER IR SRR P AR
FEREE GG FE 336 52BN AN A
AlFENSTMPRERIAE R
BEAFRBEEGIEXVEBE2LRIDY
ATHBRNERIOAE

()  REGHEFE

Number of Approximate
Shares held/ percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested shareholding
i/ BERER BRI
nE/EB 513 ERtE RZEE BAL
Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan Beneficial interest 10,950,000 "o 1.06%
BEHBRE Bafka (HiE)
Interest of spouse 477,486,000 Now 46.27%
RS G
Giant Mind Beneficial interest 409,670,000 39.70%
Giant Mind BESiES
Note BisE
Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan, the spouse of Ms. Wong Pui Yain, is deemed under the BEZEFRBEGRN  BHESE

SFO to be interested in these 477,486,000 Shares in which Ms. Wong Pui Yain is

interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors have not been
notified by any person who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or which fall to be disclosed under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the Share Option
Scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the Shareholders passed
on 23 January 2018. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 8 February 2018 upon the listing of the Company's shares on GEM, and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of the Share

Option Scheme and no share option was outstanding as at 3| December 2020.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to

Shareholders. The Board may offer to grant an option to any Qualifying Grantees.

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who is an
officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Employee”); (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Secondee”);
(3) any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or
any affiliates; (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of goods
or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof (collectively the
“Eligible Person™); or (i) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible Person or his immediate
family members or any company controlled by an Eligible Person or his immediate family

members.
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The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exercised. The maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue following the

completion of the Capitalisation Issue and the Share Offer, i.e. 86,000,000 Shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to that person in any |2-month period up to the date of the latest grant

exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as determined by the Board and not exceeding |0 years from
the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the offer
(or such period as the Board may specify in writing). The exercise price of the options is
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is

the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets

on the offer date;

(b)  the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five Business Days immediately preceding the offer date;
or

() the nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 8

February 2018, after which no further options will be granted or offered.
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on || January 2021, 3,750,000 share
options were granted to the executive Directors, independent non-executive Director,
employee and consultant of the Group, respectively, in order to reward the Directors,
employee and consultant for the development of the Group. These share options have an
exercise price of HK$0.13 per share and an exercise period ranging from || January 2021
to 10 January 2024. The price of the Company's shares at the date of grant was HK$0.122

per share.

The table below shows a breakdown of the share options that were granted:

Name of Directors

EEERE

RBEBRE - R2021F1A11H - HRIAAR
SERTEE  BUNTEE EERE
4% 13,750,000 BE AR #E - AREVES - B
ERBEHRARSERREMENER - 258
IAERTTEE AERO0.13BT - 1TEHA2021
FIAIIBE245F1A108 « KRRFRMOA
B BE 2 B RER0.128TT

TRIVRAAE 2 BAERRAD -

Number of Share

options granted

EEns RimBERERE
Wong Pui Yain 850,000
AMA

Wan Suet Yee, Cherry 850,000
BER

Leung Yuk Lun, Ulric 350,000
REB

Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam 350,000
Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam

Wee Keng Hiong, Tony 350,000
Wee Keng Hiong, Tony

Sub-total of share options granted to directors of the Company 2,750,000
RYFDAESNERE N

Other employee and consultant of the Group 1,000,000
AEBHE M EE MR

Total 3,750,000
aft

At the date of this annual report, the Company had 3,750,000 Options outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately 0.4% of the Company's

issued shares in issue as at the date of the this annual report.

RAEHBH  ARARAREBEBRETEE
3,750,00017 1o RTEEFE CHE - A RIS
WA AR REEITRAD£04%
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER
In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed

Innovax Capital Limited (“Innovax”) to be the compliance adviser. As informed by
Innovax, neither Innovax nor any of its directors nor employees nor close associates had
any interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if any) or otherwise in relation to the
Company which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of
the GEM Listing Rules (except for the compliance adviser agreement dated 26 January
2018 entered into between the Company and Innovax (the “Compliance Adviser

Agreement”)) as at 3| December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material breach

of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As a restaurant operator, the Group has a large and diverse customer base. There is no
customer significantly dominated in Group's revenue. For the year ended 31 December
2020, purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
22.1% (2019: 19.0%) of the Group's total purchases of raw materials and consumables
consumed. During the same year, purchases from the Group's largest supplier accounted
for approximately 6.0% (2019: 4.3%) of the Group's total purchases of raw materials and

consumables.
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Save for the purchases from related companies as set out in note 30 to the audited
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, their respective associates, or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any significant beneficial interest in the major

customers and suppliers disclosed above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. None
of such related party transactions constitutes a connected transaction which is subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement and/or shareholders” approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and will review and improve the corporate governance practices

and standards constantly.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 50 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a

sufficient public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the laws of Caymans Islands
or the Articles which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to the existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director is entitled under the Company's
Avrticles to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as he or

she shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has maintained a directors and officer liability insurance during the year
ended 31 December 2020. To the extent as permitted by the Companies Ordinance, a
directors’ liability insurance is currently in place to protect the Directors against potential

costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 337 employees in Hong Kong (2019: 364

employees in Hong Kong). Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and in accordance with the performance, qualification(s) and experience of each individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses, based on each individual's performance, are paid to
employees as recognition and in reward for their contributions. Other fringe benefits
such as medical insurance, retirement benefits and other allowances are offered to all the

Group's employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set out in note

40 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with its key
stakeholders, including its employees, customers and suppliers, to meet its immediate
and long-term business goals. During the year ended 3| December 2020, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and its employees, customers and

suppliers.
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The Group recognises employees as one of its valuable assets and strictly complies
with the labour laws and regulations and reviews regularly the existing staff benefits for
improvement. Apart from the reasonable remuneration packages, the Group also offers
other employee benefits, such as medical insurance. The Group provides good quality
services to its customers and keeps a database for direct communications with recurring
customers for developing a long-term trusted relationship. The Group also maintains

effective communication and develops a long-term business relationship with its suppliers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as a discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance during the year ended 31 December 2020 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position can be found in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section set out on pages | | to 24 of this report. These discussions form part

of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report, which forms part of this report, is set

out on pages 51 to 66 of this report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 24 May 2021, the notice of which

shall be sent to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles, the

GEM Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 8 May 2021 to 24 May 2021,

both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

Shareholders are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on 17 May 2021.
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AUDITOR

On 29 November 2019, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned and BDO Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Group. There have been no other changes of auditors in
the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year have been audited by
BDO Limited who shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the
annual general meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Jia Group Holdings Limited

Wong Pui Yain

Chairperson

23 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERVR 3 LTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jia Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 96 to 196, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”(the “Code™), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements which indicates
that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$ 19,100,000 during the financial year ended 31
December 2020. As of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$46,004,000. As stated in note 3(b), these conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a

going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have determined the matters

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report,

Revenue from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations

(Refer to notes 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements)

We identified revenue from catering services of the Group's restaurant operations
as a key audit matter, due to the significance of revenue from catering services of the
Group's restaurant operations to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from catering

services of the Group's restaurant operations amounted to HK$173,303,000.

We focused on revenue reconciliation of daily sales report to cash receipts and credit
card settlements as the vast majority of revenue was settled in cash or by credit card.
In addition, the recording of revenue involves high volume of small amount transactions
through various systems. Any errors arising from capturing of data or interfaces of data
amongst the various systems may have significant impact on revenue. Therefore, it

required significant time and resources for the audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZRARE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd) FEERBIEE)
Revenue from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations (Cont d) EXBERELENERBRBERA (Z)
Our response: ZERIEIE :

: Obtaining an understanding of the Group's revenue recognition process and . T ESENRAERBERERE
validating the management’s key internal controls over the revenue recognition BESHKABRBENETZANIHE

process; il

. Performing analytical procedures on revenue through comparing the actual result . BESAFENEREEE F—FNE

of current year with that of prior year and assessing reasonableness of its trend in B EEEITH B AT AT - 5T
relation to the Group's restaurant operation; fMEE SXEEEBKLEMNBEN
ANTH | .
AT

. Verifying the daily sales reports, cash receipts and credit card settlement on sample . BRBRERZERR ﬁﬁ wE e
basis; and W RERRER

. Verifying the accuracy and completeness of the daily sales reports generated from . FEMECEHZ B (1% R TR H) B
the back end systems on sample basis. BHEREHERE LTI -

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in ESEEENYE BERREBEUARCEAE

respect of the Group’s restaurants BENRERRG

(Refer to notes 4, 5, 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements) (BL2EEaMBREMET4 -5 16 17TR
18)

The Group had significant assets on its consolidated statement of financial position, BZE200F 128318 - EEERELEESHTE

including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020. RAXRFHREEREE  BFEME BER
REBALEREEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in
respect of the Group’s restaurants (Cont d)

Management is required to perform an impairment assessment where indicators of
impairment are identified, on these assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
these assets were allocated to cash generating units (“CGUs"), and management has
assessed the recoverable amount of these assets based on higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
management judgement was used to appropriately identify CGUs and to determine
the key assumptions and estimations. Based on the above assessment performed, for
the year ended 31 December 2020, management concluded that impairment loss of
approximately HK$2,326,000 in respected of the Group's property, plant and equipment
and HK$208,000 in respect of its right-of-use assets were made.

Our response:

. Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology in respect of the

assessment of the recoverable amount;

. Assessing the appropriateness of the management's identification of CGUs based

on our understanding of the Group's business;

. Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions and estimations used; and

. Assessing the appropriateness of key input data used in the assessment of the

recoverable amount.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZRARE

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT (Contd)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. The

Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

92 | JIAGROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED £ R&EBAR AT

FHRONEMEN #)
BEHGEAMBRANERYEREEME
o MESTIeHEMERBERERTA

MR °

RESERRAPBRAMS - BEFNEML
~HEEMLER %ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁﬂ%@ﬁ

BANBBRRABZAEERRBRTEEN
BEMFEEAEEIEUTFEERERR
e EREBESFEITHIE  REFAR
Hit B FHEBAHRRL - BEAREZ
2E -HENH  BFUETAEERSE -

EERGAMBHRARENTET

EXRARRBELGHAMAGEMNER
BBREEYREELDRGDINREZRE
REERNYNGEMBRE  THERA/R
e MBRRNRENFEARKRFIE

RMEHM B R RRAPTF R ARFES &

g

EREGEVBHREN EZ28ETH B
SEBERENEN  TEBRABATRE
ERELLEBMER  URERBELYE

SITER  KRIFEFAER BREER
HFIEE  RPBEMEROERSER
ESXHARAEE B mw% HiBie -
%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%é%@ UL EEALE ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of interal control.

. obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZRARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate no. P04743

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GoEmEkEMEZERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200FE 1283 BLLEE

2020 2019
(re-presented)
(&E5)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEE THET TAT

Revenue WA 6 173,303 217,738
Other income HAgA 8 21,282 4,088
Other gains and losses Hilas R EE 9 (1,092) (56)
Raw materials and consumables used FTFR IR S FEt (46,458) (53,776)
Staff costs BIHA (81,127) (92,617)
Depreciation e (29,658) (36,709)
Property rentals and related expenses MEMRE LB (10,940) (16,816)
Utility expenses AEHX (6,354) (7.243)
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREERY (8,045) (9:445)
Other operating expenses H & 10 (24,266) 27,614)
Finance costs BMEKK I (2,283) (2,744)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment ~ #13 ~ BE R BRIREEE 18 (2,326) (1,454)
Impairment loss of trade and other receivable B 5 M EMEWFIERFEER (1,565) (1,070)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEENREERR 18 (208) (3979)
Loss before taxation BT AT ES 1B 12 (19,737) (31,697)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisHiEe,/ (%) 13 637 (260)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FAES1E I 2 TE1 A S 4850 (19,100) (31957)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year  JA T A (G F A& E K&

attributable to: PHRXEE:

— Owners of the Company S \YNCIE ZSUN (20,407) (31957)

— Non-controlling interests —IEER R 1,307 -

(19,100) (31957)

Loss per share BREE

Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARTEE (BL) 5 (2.25) (3.72)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

720205 12831 B

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
G F87 T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER 16 30,592 31,528
Right-of-use assets EREEE |7 43,868 34,392
Investment in an associate REE A RHIRE 19 - -
Deferred tax assets BEHIBEE 29 3,841 2,850
Deposits g 20 16,685 13,922
Pledged bank deposits BIEIFRITER 21 5,000 4,500
99,986 87,192
Current assets REEE
Inventories =E 22 4,956 5,857
Trade and other receivables, deposits and BHREMEKRE - Be
prepayments RIERRIE 20 10,429 16,490
Amount due from related companies JELK BaRsE A B 5RIR 23 381 -
Amount due from a controlling shareholder FEMS AR AR BR R 1A 23 288 98
Amount due from an associate JEL & A R FRIE 23 862 914
Tax recoverable EEEE 1211 | 447
Pledged bank deposits BIEIFRITER 21 4,500 -
Bank balances and cash BITHRBREAS 21 15,443 8,142
38,070 32,948
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables and accrued charges B 5 KA TIE R ESERA 24 42,094 39,153
Contract liabilities ANAaE 25 2,899 1761
Amounts due to related companies JE1 BARS A R FRIB 23 853 226
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders JE FEPE AR AR R 51 IR 23 = -
Bank borrowings RITER 26 15,191 3,902
Tax payable e TR 132 284
Lease liabilities HERRE 17 22,905 27,369
84,074 72,695
Net current liabilities REAETFE (46,004) (39,747)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAR 53,982 47,445
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R &R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

202012831 H

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
Bt 87t Fi5T
Non-current liabilities kRBaE
Provision s 27 3,510 3,852
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 29 349 35
Lease liability HERE |7 26,585 14,383
30,444 18,270
Net assets EERE 23,538 29,175
Capital and reserves BARfHE
Share capital (PN 28 10,319 8,600
Reserves & 14,719 20,575
Equity attributed to owners of the Company AREHEAANEEER 25,038 29,175
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (1,500) -
Total equity R 23,538 29,175
* represented balance less than HK$ 1,000 * JREESRNE 1, 00078 7T

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 196 were approved and authorised EE2CMN2021 F3A23 ABLE RIRETEE

for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: REIE 196 B 2 iraMigHmEK » LH TIIA
ITRARE
WONG PUI YAIN WAN SUET YEE CHERRY
A BEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FeESEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE200F 1283 BLLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEARL
Non-
Share Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve losses Total interests equity
R BRGEE  BbRE  RHER B FERER  RRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TR TiEn
At | fancary 2019 R019% 1 818 B600 740 036 BB 6L - 61132
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year ERBEREER LS - - - (31,957) (31,957) - (31.957)
At 31 December 2019 and | January 2020 R0I9FI2A31BR
WNEIAIR 8,600 73601 10326 (63352) 2,175 - BT
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year ERBEREERTLE - (20407) (20407) 1307 (19,100)
Issue of shares (note d) Bk (Mizkd) 1719 12,034 - - 13753 - 13753
Transaction costs attributed to share placing BORERERZHE - (370) - - (370) - (370)
Disposalideemed disposal of partial equity interestin -~ & /B AHERHBARZHH
subsidlaries without loss of control (note 32) T B A = ERIE (:32) - - - 2887 2887 (2807) 80
At 31 December 2020 R00E12A318 10319 85,265 10,326 (80.872) 25,038 (1,500) 23538
Notes: PisE -
(@)  Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of |) the differences between the (@) HAEEEATSENGE ) BRRER

considerations received and the proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net
assets attributable to the relevant interests upon the deemed disposal of partial interest
in subsidiaries; 2) the differences between the considerations paid and the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the relevant interests upon
the deemed acquisition/acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries; 3) acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary by a controlling shareholder as deemed capital contribution;
4) reserve arising from the group reorganisation, which mainly comprises issue of shares by
Big Team Ventures Limited (“Big Team") and the Company to acquire equity interest in
subsidiaries and shareholders' loans of respective subsidiaries with an aggregate loan balance
of HK$48,330,000; 5) deemed capital contribution from shareholders through waiver of
amounts due to the then shareholders of HK$3,589,000; and 6) HK$1,825,000 upon the
waiver of inter-company loans to More Eamn by group entities that caused an increase in net

assets of More Eamn attributable to non-controlling interests.

BRHENBAR B EERARMERRENG
BEFEREELINENZE  )EMR
B RUKEE, BB B A R MER 1R 18
MEmEEEEFERMELDNHENE

) RERBRWE B AR
sMEs (RIELE) 4 REEEMEL 2

{8 =2 F4EBig Team Ventures Limited([ Big
Team |) AR B) /U5 0 I8 2 R AR B =B
BARIMMRRE R (B EF 548,330,000
BT MEATRD  5) BB RREN SRR
TIE3,589, 0008 TTMARIEIRILE : R6)&

B Z R4 T More EamMEB AR RIHEE
BN IR A FE (G More Fam B FEIE
JN1,825,0007 7T ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A B 3L 4
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

Notes: (continued)

(b)  On 23 January 2018, the Company capitalised an amount of HK$6,915,000 by issuing
additional 691,500,000 shares, credited as fully paid, to the then existing shareholders of the
Company in proportion as nearly as may be to their respective shareholding in the Company

without involving fractions.

() On 8 February 2018, the Company issued 168,450,000 shares at HK$0.30 per share upon

the share offer.

(d)  On 24 September 2020, 171,910,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.0| each
were issued by placing at price of HK$0.08 per share.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 1283 BLLEE

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b3 FB7 F57
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEs
Loss before taxation BREEAIEIE (19,737) (31,697)
Adjustments for: FLATSBELFAE
Interests income FIEMA 8 (143) ©7)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREETE 16 11,842 10,714
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREENE 17 17,816 25,995
Finance costs BAKA Il 2,283 2744
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y « BE &R ENEE 9 [,454 70
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 1% - E R ERIREEE 18 2,326 1,454
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEENRERBE 18 208 3979
Impairment loss of trade receivable B S RYGTIERREREE 20 - 528
Impairment loss of other receivable H R RIBR) R EE B 20 1,565 542
(Reversal of)/Provision for reinstatement provision &8 & () /it (344) 137
Operating cash flows before movements in working ‘& B & @ HBAILERERE
capital 17,270 14,369
Decrease/(increase) in inventories wERD,/ () 901 (1,032)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables, 8% REMEUFIE - EE K
deposits and prepayments BRFER D32 m) 1,733 (6,358)
Increase in trade and other payables and 85 KE MR RIE )2
accrued charges et &AL 2,941 17,948
Increase in contract liabilities /‘\Z’U'E\%ibﬂ 1,138 506
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related R NG )/
companies (108) 132
Increase in amount due from an associate JE LTS & /A B FRIBE AN - (555)
Decrease in provision BfEm (258) -
Cash generated from operations REEENRS 23,617 25,010
Income tax refund REPTEH 44 253
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ~ REZBELNR L TR
ACTIVITIES 23,661 25263

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 %% | 101



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
G Fi87 T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Interests received EHFE 143 97
Advance to a controlling shareholder A — B R AR R K (190) (40)
Advance to a related company ) — IR X Rl AR (381) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BEREHED
and equipment P38 450 21
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELERE (15,136) (21,009)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEERRTER (5,000) -
Repayment from an associate —EE R RIER 52 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ R&EZEFTAREFHE (20,062) (20931)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Interests paid ERFE (601) (307)
New bank borrowings FTIRITIE 14,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (2,711) (4,543)
Advanced from a related company —EBEB AR BN 735 -
Payment for lease liabilities HEBBRT (21,184) (27,039)
Proceeds from placing of new shares REFIRFTS IR 13,753 -
Payments of transaction costs attributable to placing 2T ECE X7 (G X S A
of shares (370) -
Sales proceeds of disposal of interests in subsidiaries & & [ B A 7l m A HE
FIfS 5 0R 80 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) METEAE(FRRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B 3,702 (31,889)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND ~ R&RBRSZEYEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) #8 7,301 (27,557)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENNRERAEEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 8,142 35,699
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RERNRERASEEY
OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK (RITESBRRE)
BALANCES AND CASH 15,443 8,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BT IS SRR B 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of
the Cayman Islands on 21 August 2015 and its shares have been listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 February
2018. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Giant Mind International
Limited (“Giant Mind"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and is controlled by Ms. Wong Pui Yain (“Ms. PY Wong"). The address of the
Company's registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the

corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as investment holding company and the principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“"HK$"),
which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to

the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

HZ2020F 12831 HILLEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2.

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on | January 2020

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to

HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the

Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BRMBHRELE L3N (BETA)

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8

BRESERFE  RRBBGERFSH (BFIA)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

BERGRERFE0R  BEMBHREERNETRL
BEEMBRELEF IR (BTA)

Contractual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

2018FHBRERLER

These new or amended HKFRSs that are effective from | January 2020 did
not have any material impact on the Group's accounting policies. The Group

has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for

the current period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

(b)  New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group's
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply

these changes on the date they become effective.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

2. EHEEMBHEER(FEY

Bk

(b)

HEAD) (&)
B MR EROHTBE
AERMBHREER

DA BN SR B B 75 4R R VB T A
ZHE]RERT B ARG REE
BIE & B - BrRAREY - AR
BARKERPRM - AEEE A
ATEIN TR AR B B A%

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’

BRI HRELERE 175 REBREL®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
and HKAS 28 Joint Venture®

BENBREENE 05 LB B G EL REFEABENFRAECEZHEENHESIRAS
£285% (B71A)

Annual Improvements Framework Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 (amendments)?

FEUGERER BREMBREER2018F2020FHMFEBUE (BFTA) 3

Amendment to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

BRI RELEINR (BETF) BESIER 2 Bt

Amendment HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use®

BB G ERIF 165 (BFTAK) PMERE R Al PRSFIR

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract®

BB G ERIFE37H (BATA) REAN-BITERZKR

Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of Financial Statements®

BB GIERFE 5% (BFTX) isEmRz 25°

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-related Rent Concessions!'

BRMBHREERE 1657 (BRI A) WHOBRAEHREBES RS

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2?

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

BRGEFIN  BEYBHEERESR - FIREENE -F2REER
£

BAMBREENE7R - BEUMBHREER
FORRBEUBREERF 657 (BRI X)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. EHAEBHIEHREEL ([FiEa

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont4) BiRsEn ) (2
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective (b) TEMEEKRERNTT LB
(Contd) AEBUBHRERER(F)
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | June 2020. : 202056 A | Ak 2 & FIR )
FREHRER -
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021. ? 2021 5| A1 B3z ERIE
FREHEEY -
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022. } P02 1 A1 Bk 2 & FIRH
FEHEEY -
¢ Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or ¢ RUHE H B RR202F 1 A 1R
after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after | January ok 2 1% 5 R 0 & {8 F 2 2R
2022. IR R RBERHHER -
° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023. > 20235 | A1 Ak 2 & FIRH
FREHRER -
¢ The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or contribution ¢ ZEE B PRANEER
of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or after a date to be Hisl v e v FEEIR A E
determined. EZBEDESE/A
The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of all above NeE@EES - ERA LilEET
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the ERIERLEER R EBIAE
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. F& T8 B 45k i A BT S 1R
REREATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

@

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules").

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown measures
imposed by government in Hong Kong to contain the spreading of
COVID-19 pandemic had resulted in operating hours restriction and
temporary closure of the restaurants during the year. These have negatively
impacted the results of the Group during the reporting period and the
liquidity position.

During the year, the Group has incurred a net loss of HK$19,100,000 and
at the end of reporting period, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$46,004,000.

The above events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets and

discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)  Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Contd)

For the purpose of assessing going concern, the directors of the Company

have prepared a cash flow forecast covering a period of 12 months from the

date of approval of these consolidated financial statements (“Forecast”). The

past performance and the following measures have been taken into account

in the preparation of the Forecast including active cost-saving and other

measures to improve the Group's operating cash flows and financial position:

b)

The Group has been communicating with the banks to deal with the
breach of the financial covenants in order to maintain the existing

banking loan facilities utilised (note 26);

The Group has been diversifying the business model to enhance the
revenue streams in difference segments, such as the Ando, Between

Coffee and Cloud kitchen concept;

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost controls over staff costs
and other operating expenses aiming at improving the working capital

and cash flow position of the Group; and

Closely monitoring the development of COVID-19 and taking
appropriate measures when needed including reopening of the

temporary closed restaurants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Contd)

In consideration of the Group's current operation and business plan, the
directors are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial

obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

In addition to the above, Ms. PY Wong, being the controlling shareholder
and director of the Company, has undertaken to provide financial support to
the Group to enable the Group to have sufficient working capital to meet its
liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due and to continue to carry
on its business over the period covered by the Forecast. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern

basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to reduce the carrying values of the Group's assets
to their net realisable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has

not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise

indicated.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 4. FEEHE#E)
(a)  Basis of consolidation (Contd) @ @HEREE(E)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control of the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners

of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets

or liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of an associate used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations

or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from

the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(b)

Investment in an associate (Cont d)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent

that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(c)  Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is

satisfied, ie. when “control”of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of

goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that

are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by

reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following critenia is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative

use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment

for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group's revenue from catering, restaurant consultancy and other

services are recognised over time as such services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

©

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d)

Revenue from membership services and sponsorship from promotion
services are recognised on a time-based method over the subscription

period/sponsorship period respectively.

License fee income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreement. License fee income is determined by

reference to the gross revenue generated by licensee under the agreement.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements HEMFEEE
Furniture and fixtures 4L 2 B T 5
Equipment and tools RERITA
Computers -

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(@)

Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

©)

()

Impairment on tangible assets (Contd)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method/first-in first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 5. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees or points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 4, FEEIHER#E)
(g)  Financial instruments (Cont d) (e SMIAE)
Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss, except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which

HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations"applies.

THEENSBR K ETE

HATHIEEN S RAER A
BEAAHE

- REAREXEAASEN
eRMEE HANRANK
BaRERE R

- ANBRFRSREERBE
ENRERELER/ZN
Rg RARBERESHOFIE -

BT 2 BAEH KA
RATEH AR 2 EREN S
HiE

RENRREYKES LR
ERERHENEBHRN
TRANEBEE &

- ANBRFRSREERBE
AR REME RN
e RARBEREHOFIE -

AR EREEARIARDT
BFffABENIAGE  BEE
RER/BREREMEEL
A RAREEIIREEE
DS E R EIE RS
Batt  FERRnEHEHKES
RBOHARE - AEEAEET
AEERRE ARG 2
SRR E R FERHIREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 %% | 119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, amounts due from a controlling shareholder, amounts due from an
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

120 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R &EBARA T

4.

EFEEFBR#E)

(©

SRIE(E)
SHEE(E)
B K R FY B

MSWAGL R IR B SHR AT &
M MEEMNERAZ A
@ o FIBRABBHERFXE
AREREEREAENE |
MEREHREERENEREE
RIBRSN - BLERRE BREERE
MEREEMS @ MERAZEB
HERAEEANE TMEHREH
EEt R EEMIHRARER
WEREEERENESRIAN
FERBRMARGTE  LNREBE
ETBRLEFEERE  AImETE
ZERMEETBRELGERER
B R R - A SRR
HeRmEERTAERBERT

PREEAE

ARERREREY GRS LA
FIFATRENEREE (B
BHREMBRTIE  RE &
W BR B8 - FEARE P
R - CEMBITERRRITE
BINEHEEBRRERERERR
- BHEEERSENERE
HHEE 3T - ARBR B & RFERIA
RIEERBRIEL -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 4. FEEHE#E)
(g)  Financial instruments (Cont d) (e SMIAE)
Financial assets (Contd) EHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont d) EHBERE (E)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
[2-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current

conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on

these assets are assessed individually for all debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Cont d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

() Significant increase in credit risk (Contd)

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount

becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(i)

(i

Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to

demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(i)

(V)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Cont d)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition

event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

4. EIEEHHE#E)
@ SMIAE)

TREE (F)

THEENRE (E)

(iii)

FERESREE (&)

(d) ERARRERENE
TEMAIHEM -

M SHERR

HEENBRRZE R
REEMBRE#R - BY
EERRURE A8 (PN 5
HHTERBRICEAR
ERRFF)  HREHRUK
BmE ARASRBHE
B—F(UBRRRLEER
£) AEESWHERE
E-EERERER (IE
2R CHMENEREE
3 AT AR 1B K SR B RO W Bl 72
Fr B iR BIB1T - MR
PREUEHER M - HRIK
EEEFNEEGNBEN

7
e

N

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 &% | 125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

126 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED R &EBAERA T

4.

FEEBEE &)
SRIE(E)

(©

TREE (F)

THEENRE (E)

V)

R EERRZERE

B

RHEERRZERE
AR - BHBRKRE (A fH
BEBNMBRER) E
WEBRZ B - BHOBEE
FEOBREZFETIE
REAEEERABZE
SHEEL - BRREER
B EET YR B & e
THoE UEBELE
HMERAEEETE

—fRimE  BHEEER
DIREENENAREZ
EaNReREREAS
ERAKBRZAEREL
AR ZRE @ LIRERHER
R < BERRARAR -

FBWAZSBEENR
HARENE  KFEZTR
BERERE R&BER
T MBUMAREREE
HBEEAAATR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 4. FEEHE#E)
(g)  Financial instruments (Cont d) (e SMIAE)
Financial assets (Contd) EHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont d) EHBERE (E)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Contd)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to

the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the financial asset's carrying amount and the sum of

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial liabilities and equity (Contd)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
accrued charges, amounts due to related companies and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(h)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans (including
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")) are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already

paid.

Leasing

Al leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than |2 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

@)

Leasing (Cont d)

()

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the Group applies the revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)
()  Leasing (Contd)

()

(i)

Right-of-use asset (Cont d)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are held
for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried
at fair value. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the Group also
has leased a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises it judgement and determines that it is a separate
class of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset arising from the

properties under tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's

incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

@)

Leasing (Cont d)

(i)

Lease liability (Cont d)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the

lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised

in-substance fixed lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)
()  Leasing (Contd)

(i)

Lease liability (Cont d)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because,
for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension or
termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount
of the lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying
value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of
future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised, except
the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset,
with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is

adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

U]

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘loss before taxation” because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

()

Taxation (Cont 'd)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs, other than those directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance

that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that

the grants will be received.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Government grants (Cont d)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and
equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and
measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where
the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to

be received from the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(n)  Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
4, management of the Group is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the

next financial year.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Cont)

@

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

()

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and
depreciation method in determining the related depreciation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
management's experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions and will take into
account the lease term (including any renewal option) of the Group's
restaurants. Management of the Group will accelerate the depreciation
charge where the economic useful lives are shorter than previously
estimated due to removal or closure of restaurants. The management
of the Group will also write-off or write-down the carrying value of
the items which are technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned. Actual economic useful lives may differ from

estimated economic useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Contd)

(@)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(i)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets

Assessing impairment of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets requires an estimation of its recoverable amounts
which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.
If there is any indication that the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets allocated to each individual restaurant cash
generating unit (“CGU") may be impaired, such as restaurants
operated with operating loss, recoverable amount shall be estimated
for such restaurant CGU. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the CGUs of each individual restaurant and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value to
those cash flows. When fair value less costs of disposal calculations
are undertaken, the fair value was estimated using relevant valuation
technique and make reference to recent market comparative
for similar assets adjusted for difference in condition in order to

determine the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Cont) 5. METNERKR 2
(b)  Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (b) ERETERENEEREN
(i) Going concern () FEEE
Management makes an assessment of the Group's ability to continue EEENREGEMBER
as a going concern when preparing the consolidated financial KEHAEEFELL R
statements. As disclosed in note 3(b), the validity of the going NYEH T o BLAPEE3(b)
concem assumptions depends upon the series of measures and the PR ee - ARG EREN
continuing financial support from Ms. PY Wong, who is the controlling BRMEBUAR — RF1E i
shareholder owner and director of the Company. REREMEZ T (RAR
REABBERRRES) N
B SHT -
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. WARSHBEHR
Revenue LON
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable from restaurant WAEERRLNHE WRERKIE (B
operations including income from catering services (net of discount). The Group's BESRBEA (HkRITH) - REEE
revenue from external customers based on their nature are detailed below: REFHEHRBINRE P WA
mr
2020 2019
(re-presented)
(&E51)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Revenue recognised over time ISR LN
Catering services EHRIRTS
~ Fine dining —RIREHR 92,881 75433
— Mid-market dining —HIRER 24,391 66,623
— Specialty coffee —Fm Ik 2,193 -
— Casual dining — KB 53,838 75,682
173,303 217738
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'a)

Segmental information

The Group applies the practical expedient of HKFRS |5 which allows the Group
not to disclose the information of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contract with customers, as the original expected
duration of the performance obligation arising from the catering services are all

within one year.

The Group's revenue is solely derived from the operation and management of
restaurants in Hong Kong. For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the chief operating decision maker (being the executive directors of
the Company) reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group as
a whole, which are prepared based on same accounting policies set out in note
4. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment and no further

analysis of this single segment is presented.

Due to the change of business environment, the management has modified the
business segment information to be more specific for chief operating decision by
reflecting the brand diversification purpose. The importance of such segmentation
is that it makes it easier to focus marketing efforts and resources on reaching the
most valuable customers and achieving business goals. Such changing will allow the
Group to get to know the customers more clearly, identify what is needed in the
Group market segment, and determine how the Group can best meet those needs

with the product or service.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sponsorship income and membership
income amounted to approximately HK$0.4 million (2019: HK$1.3 million)
reclassified as other income, in order to more clearly demonstrate its catering
services and to more clearly reflect the performance of the Group's principal
activities. In this regard, the comparative figures of the sponsorship income of
HK$800,000 and membership income of HK$527,000 were reclassified from

revenue to other income to conform with the current year's presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Br RS AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont ')

Segmental information (Contd)

Effect on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income for the year ended 31 December 2019:

AR B ERER (2)
DEER ()

HE2W09F A3 BLEESEGAER
REMEEREROTE

As previously

report Reclassification  As re-presented

UpIE: b RED

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Fi&T TER

Revenue WA (1327) 217,738
Other income Hep A 1327 4,088

The reclassification has no financial impact to the consolidated statement of financial
position, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

Geographical information

The Group's operation are located in Hong Kong during the years ended 3|

December 2020 and 2019.

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and financial assets) of
approximately HK$74,460,000 (2019: HK$65,920,000) are located in Hong Kong
based on the geographical location of assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual external customer contributes over 10% of total

revenue of the Group for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 7. EERESHS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @) ESRTFEBTHAEHME
Ms. PY Wong and Ms. Wan Suet Yee, Cherry were appointed as directors BMEZ T RS ELTR20I15
of the Company on 21 August 2015 and redesignated as executive directors F8A2IBEZEAARAE
on 18 May 2017, and Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk EUM2017F5R18BHER
Lun, Ulric and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong, Tony were appointed as independent #77== + HDevin Nijanthan
non-executive directors of the Company on 23 January 2018. Ms PY Wong Chanmugam%t 4 « 2EBE4E
is the chief executive officer of the Company. K Wee Keng Hiong * TonysCHER

2018F | B23BEZTAARNT
BYFRTEE - #RLLTA

AREITHABE, ©
Director's emoluments for their services in connection with the management EENREFERAEEEHKIER
of the affairs of the Group were as follow: RSN T :
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z2020F 12531 HILFE
Executive Directors Independent non-executive Directors
HTES BUFHTES
Wan Devin Leung Wee
Wong Suet Yee, Nijanthan Yuk Lun,  Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Cherry  Chanmugam Ulric Tony Total
EfE BER REM @zt

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FiEgn Fign Fign FiEgn FiEn FiEn

Fees 6 - - 100 100 100 300
Other emoluments: Ao :
Salaries and other benefitsand & RE MR K2R
allowance 690 715 - - - [ ,405
Retirement benefit scheme RINEME B
contributions 17 8 - - - 35
Discretionary bonus (note) BogTear (Bizh) - - - - - -
707 733 100 100 100 1,740
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(2) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Executive Directors

7. EEREEME 2

(@)

ESRFETHAEMSE (&)

BZE2019F 12831 HiFFEE

Independent non-executive Directors

YrES BUHTES
Wan Devin Leung Wee
Wong Suet Yee, Nijanthan Yuk Lun,  Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Cherry  Chanmugam Ulric Tony Total
g BER RIB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Fees ik - - 150 150 150 450
Other emoluments: e
Salaries and other benefits and Ge REMRTIRE
allowance 859 808 - - - 1,667
Retirement benefit scheme BB B
contributions 18 18 - - - 36
Discretionary bonus (note) B 7eaL (BifsE) 57 97 - - - 154
934 923 150 150 150 2307
Note: The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference to the it : &

individual's performance.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the Directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during both years. None of the Directors of the Company has

waived any remuneration for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contq)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year included two
Directors of the Company (2019: two Directors) whose emolument is
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining

three (2019: three) individuals are set out below:

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

EEREEME &)

BEME

FRAEERERSTMAL
BEARBMEBEE (2019F :
MEESE)  EER EXHire
[ e HA=4 (20196 : =%&)

BABBEEHIN DT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAERT FHET
Salaries and other benefits and allowance Fre M EAEF N 2R, 2,600 1,988
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFFTEIER 54 42
Discretionary bonus (note) BB FEAT (M aE) I 60
2,655 2,090

Note: The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference to the

individual's performance.

The number of the highest paid individuals who are not Directors of the

M RIEARL2EEARRERBE

TMERENFEARAESFH

Company have their remuneration falling within the following bands: SHMATHBENT -
2020 2019
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEHHE EEHAE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ Z£1,000000787C 3 3
3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the three (2019: three) highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the three (2019: three) highest paid individuals waived any

emoluments for both years.

AEBEZE2020F K2019F 12
AIBIEFELEM=4 (2019
F:Z8)EaEH AT ER
e ERRSIEMAREE
I & B 5 ) B2 B ol 1E A B B
HWE-=Z2Q09F: =8)&S
FMALHERREFEREST
A& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

8. OTHER INCOME Hittig A

2020 2019
(re-presented)

(&E5)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Government grants (note) BB (P EE) 19,381 -
Sponsorship income EBBA 333 800
Membership income FEWRA 95 527
Interests income F EIA 143 97
Consignment income of wines and cigars BEEREMTERA 48 60
Event service income EBRISBA - 757
Restaurant consultancy service income ZEBRRBKA 660 1,265
Forfeited credits from vouchers and gift cards RerkBmRED R 275 -
License fee income FABRA 40 I14
Compensation from insurance claim R FRREE - 24
Others Hit 307 444
21,282 4,088

Note: During the year, the Group recognised government grants of HK$19,381,000
in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies, of which HK$14,811,000 relates to
Employment Support Scheme and HK$4,570,000 relates to Subsidy Schemes under
Anti-epidemic Fund, both of which were provided by the Hong Kong government.
There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts

of those subsidies.

fisr:Fm - AEEH2019T
SR EE M ERBA
#8)19,381,000/8 7T » Eh
14,811,000/ 7t ]2 4,570,000 7
T BB EABATIR AR5
EHE RN EES BB
160 o WERZ S fBh BT
B ARER G REMEAE

JER
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hit s R & 18
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAET
Net exchange gain B % 5 18 14
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERREH

equipment, net BiRFE (1,454) (70)
Reversal of provision of reinstatement provision BEGHREEREE 344 -
(1,092) (56)
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Hitt &M%

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
i85t Fi5T
Audit fee EitEA 730 713
Bank charge RITHE 222 169
Business and license fee ESV Y EITIE 259 267
Carriage and freight ERREE 639 605
Cleaning and laundry AR R 3,681 4,656
Consultancy fee R 1,461 1,586
Credit card commission ER~RA2 3,558 3,831
Decoration g 428 670
Event expense EE L5 109 379
Insurance REg 913 722
Legal and professional fee EEREXER 1,743 2987
Machine rental WA S 424 330
Operating supplies RERm 4,182 4817
Other expense HihfAx 1,793 1,526
Recruitment cost EE) = DN 139 306
Repair and maintenance HIERRE 3,000 2,655
Samples/food tasting @/ RmH 103 310
Stationery and office supplies @Y E NI 551 361
Travelling expense ERFAX 331 724
24,266 27614

FINANCE COSTS & RN
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note 17) MEEEN SR (f17) 1,682 2437
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 601 307
2,283 2,744
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

12. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

12. BREAIEE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BRERIEED R T8IA
charging:
Auditor’s remuneration A CIE 730 713
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERREITE
(note 16) (PzE16) 11,842 10,714
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 17) EREEENE (E17) 17,816 25995
Directors' remuneration (note 7) BEH (P5E7) 1,740 2,307
Other staff costs: Hith 8 TR
Salaries and other benefits e REMEN 76,202 86,670
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKENETEIHR 3,185 3,640
Total staff costs BTRABE 81,127 92617
Lease payments under operating leases in respect  IRIEAC & E L T RIEFHY
of land and buildings: MERK -
— Short-term lease expenses (note 17) —REHMERX (H17) 125 945
— Low-value leases payments (note |7) —REBEHEENKPIEE7) 5 12
— Variable lease payment (note 17) — A ERENTR(HF17) 4,305 9,625
4,435 10,582
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

The amount of taxation (credit)/charged to profit and loss represent:

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

13.

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

FisH (ER),FX
RS (FTA), /MR RIRS 8 -

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BENGER

Current tax BNEARTE 40 107
Under provision in prior years BEFEREBETE - 4
40 [11

Deferred tax (note 29) BRI (P E29)
Current year KEE (677) 149
(637) 260

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of

16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million (2019: same).

REMRHFEHEGE - cEEEE
ERNGE2E BB Tm MK A8 25%H)
BEEH - MBB2a8B T2 58K
PA16.5%BV B KB « DA MEHM
Bz BEBREER OGN EESEEZ
[6.5%EVAT— TR ©

Bt - 2B BB AT ERT G
1R85 THEAFIBH - MBBET
PAEZ fhEt IERBDE R BIZ 1 6.5%5T &
EEFIEH (20195 : #8R) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Contd)

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

13. FiEH (ER) FX @)

REZNMEH (BR)/FAXTEGS
BakEteERERAIRTAER

income as follows: HERWT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Loss before taxation BRELRIEE 19,737 31,697
Tax at the income tax rate of 165% (2019: 16.5%) 1ZFTSHFLE 165%(2019%F : 165%) (3,257) (5,230)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible OEEN R
for tax purpose MmGTE 839 1,721
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  B/E I A BTS2 (3,271) (1)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WEERNEEENTETE 6,420 3638
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences I R R I E R =R
not recognised MGEE (575) 221
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised ) 4C Al I SR AT IE 518 (793) -
Under provision in prior years BEFEEBEIR - 4
Income tax at concessionary rate REEREAERFEN - (78)
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year FNFEHR (ER),/FHx (637) 260

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 29.

14. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company for the years ended 31

December 2020 and 2019,

The Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of

the Company is based on the following data:

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

15.

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

BRER
RRRHEEANRESRERRHEEHE
LSS EIC

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TET
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss AU EBREARBEER
per share HER
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the RRARER ANEIEFEEEE
Company (HK$'000) (F%&T) 20,407 31,957
Number of shares R E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ FALAGTE FREAR R# &S
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share () E AR AR T I9 8
(000) (FAR) 906,500 860,000

Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share for both years as there was

no potential ordinary share outstanding.

AR EEEC BT L AR - %W
BFEENSREIHRRERENESE
GRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W% - BERERE

Leasehold Furniture Equipment
improvements  and fixtures and tools Computers Total
HEME BRR
%% EE#E RERIA i st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TR
COsT A
At 1 January 2019 R2019%I1A1H 54064 12,680 2,154 2744 91,642
Additions AE 14037 3727 6,466 634 24,864
Disposalswritten-off & /s - (290) (47) (62) (399)
At 31 December 2019 20195124318 68,101 6,117 28573 3316 116,107
Additions HE 6929 3752 4151 304 15,136
Disposals/written-off e/ Hi (4836) (2319) (3909) (445) (11,509)
At 31 December 2020 20205 124318 70,194 17,550 28815 3,175 119,734
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT B RF{E
At | January 2019 RI19F 1 AIB 43959 9,484 17,275 2001 72719
Provided for the year FRRHE 5484 1422 3412 39 10,714
Eliminated on disposalshwritten-off RIHE /R - (257) (10) (41) (308)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss  F & NERHERE
(note 18) (MzE18) | 454 - - - | 454
At 31 December 2019 R019F 124318 50897 10,649 20677 235 84,579
Provided for the year FREE 6246 1,668 3491 437 1,842
Eliminated on disposalshwritten-off RINE /MsAR (4833) (1358) (3024) (390) (9,605)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss ~ FME & NERFERE
(note 18) (MzEI8) 2326 - - - 2326
At 31 December 2020 20205 124318 54,636 10,959 21,144 2,403 89,142
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2020 20205124318 15,558 6,591 7671 m 30,592
At 31 December 2019 20195124318 17,204 5468 789% 960 31528
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Right-of-use assets

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

17. EREEEREEAR

ERERE

RIEAEERRBI D H0EAREENR

is as follows: HFEATMAT
Buildings
g¥
HK$’000
FE7
Cost B
As at | January 2019 M2019% 1 A1H 54,614
Additions NE [1,198
Lease modification MEIEET (1,446)
At 31 December 2019 20195 12A31R 64,366
Additions NE 5618
Lease modification MEEET 21,882
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 91,866
Accumulated depreciation and impairment K ERAE
As at | January 2019 FA2019F 1 A1 H -
Depreciation provided for the year FRFHRITE 25,995
Impairment for the year (note 18) FRRE HEE8) 3979
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 12431 H 29974
Depreciation provided for the year FRFTRITE 17816
Impairment for the year (note 18) FRREME (FEE18) 208
At 3| December 2020 20205128318 47,998
Net Book Value RREFHE
At 3| December 2020 72020124318 43,868
At 31 December 2019 201912731 A 34392
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY (Cont0) 17. EREEEREEREW)
Lease liabilities HEGE
The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdiction from which it operates. AEBEREZEmERZERHEESZ A
The values in the table below reflect the current proportions of lease payments ME - TREERBETEHFIEHER
that are either fixed or variable. HEVENERED D
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: AREERNFTHRESI T -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAET
Current liabilities MERIE 22,905 27369
Non-current liabilities FRBAE 26,585 14,383
49,490 41,752
Future lease payments are due as follows: AREERNTEBBERLT
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interests value
REHEE
(REA A BiE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TRT TART

31 December 2020 202012431 H

Not later than one year —FA 24,844 (1,939) 22,905
Later than one year and not later than two years —F{&IERER 17,026 (965) 16,061
Later than two years and not later than five years ME&IERENR 10,767 (243) 10,524

52,637 (3,147) 49,490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY (Contd) 17. FRAEEEREEEE#)
Lease liabilities (Cont d) HEGE(Z)

Minimum
lease

payments Interests  Present value
RIEHEE

(BES ), BifE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAET TAET

3| December 2019 2019128318

Not later than one year —FR 28811 (1,442) 27,369
Later than one year and not later than two years —4F{&ERER 11819 (446) 11,373
Later than two years and not later than five years MF&IERFA 3,076 (66) 3010
43,706 (1,954) 41,752

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: RERRRNSEMT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FE7
Low value lease expense EEEHERS 5 12
Short term lease expense R ER X 125 945
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets FCREEENERX 17,816 25995
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MERBNERX 1,682 2437
Variable lease payment AIERENR 4,305 9,625
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RNESRIANEHE 23,933 39,014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

18.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The management of the Group concluded there was indication of impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets associated to the restaurants with
carrying amounts (before impairment) of HK$17,573,000 (2019: HK$16,906,000)
and HK$26,454,000 (2019: HK$21,592,000), respectively. The recoverable amount

of the relevant restaurants are estimated individually.

The recoverable amount of CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the management of the Group covering the remaining lease term with
a pre-tax discount rate is 14.53% (2019: 14.51%). The annual growth rate used
is 0% to 2.8% (2019: -2.8% to 0%) as at 3| December 2020. The assumptions of
annual revenue growth rates are determined based on expectation for the market
development and is not expected to exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the catering industry in Hong Kong. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculated is the budgeted gross profit and operating expenses, which is determined
based on the recent performance of the relevant restaurants. The management of
the Group believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the

property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of the restaurants.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the Group determined
that the recoverable amount of the CGU is lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets such that they carrying amount of each category
of asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its
value in use and zero. Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation, an
impairment of HK$2,326,000 (2019: HK$1,454,000) (note 16) and HK$208,000
(2019: HK$3,979,000) (note 17) has been recognised against the carrying amount

of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively.
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN 19. REFEDTNIRE MABEQT
ASSOCIATE B
Details of the Group's investment in an associate are as follows: AEERBEARIHREFIFOT -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TET

Cost of investment in an associate, unlisted (note) ~ FABEE R BRI ERA » FE T (F5E) -

Loan to an associate [EE-NSI=PA 6,900 6,900
Less: share of post-acquisition losses that are in W EREBRER
excess of the cost of investment (BHREKAR) (6,900) (6,900)
Note: The Group subscribed 30% interest in the associate at subscription price of HK$30 BiEE - REER2016F | H 13 RRBEE30
on |3 January 2016. FETCRIARZI & D R 30% K E o
Issued and fully Proportion of equity Proportion of voting
Place of Principal place  paid share interests held by the Group power held by
Name of entity incorporation of operation capital as at 3| December the Group Principal activities
BRIR BENA3IAL AEEFE
BREE SfREE  FEERME  HERE FEREERILA) RERELH) TEER
2020 2019
Potato Head Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 30% 30% 30% (note a) Investment holding
(“Potato Head (HK)") (note b)
Potato Head Hong Kong Limited ~ &/8 Bk 1007 30% 30% 30%(Fitita) BB (FEED)
([Potato Head (HK)])
Notes: PiI5E
(a)  Pursuant to the shareholders agreement entered into by the Group and the other () REAEEHPotato Head (HK) (A&
shareholder of Potato Head (HK), an independent third party to the Group, the BBVE=R)EMRR ZARE
Group has the right to appoint one out of the three directors of Potato Head (HK). ik - AEBEBEZ EPotato Head
Accordingly, the Group is able to exercise significant influence over Potato Head (HK). (HK)E%E?EF BW—% - At » A&
& A] # Potato Head (HK){TEERF &
1 e
(b)  Potato Head (HK), through its subsidiary, operates a mixed-use entertainment venue (b)  Potato Head (HK)EiBEKIE QAL
which comprises retail shop, cafe, bar and restaurant. L—(EZ BB REEH  BETEE

0 ONTEER ORI EEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSIT AND

20. ESREMBWRE - BERTE

PREPAYMENTS A
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAET
Trade receivables from restaurant operation RELEBKEHNE HRIKFE 2,736 2,804
Rental deposits MeEe 14,483 18,201
Other deposits Hipge 5,828 3956
Other receivables Hit R R 2,143 3551
Prepayments and others AR RIE R EH A 1,924 1,900
Total trade and other receivables, deposits and BHRHMBKE - RE R
prepayments FERFIEEE 27,114 30412
Analysed as: SR
Current BNER 10,429 16,490
Non-current FERNHA 16,685 13922
27,114 30412

As at 31 December 2020, net amount of trade receivables from contracts with

customers amounted to HK$2,736,000 (2019: HK$2,804,000).

Usually, there is no credit period for the restaurant operation except for certain
customers in which credit period ranging from 4 to 30 days is granted by the
Group. The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly by cash or credit
card settlement. The settlement terms with credit card companies are usually within

7 days after the billing date which is also the service rendered date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSIT AND
PREPAYMENTS (Contd)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables from restaurant operations
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the service rendered

date, at the end of the reporting period.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

20. ESREMBWRE - BERTE

FIE (&)

AN RRHERRRERE D (EEH
R B RS ) 2R ERLEN
E AU AR DT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

0 to 30 days 0&30H 1,617 2,502
31 to 60 days 3IE60H 295 101
61 to 90 days 61 290H 452 7
Over 90 days #83E90H 372 194
2,736 2,804

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to credit card
companies and diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,119,000 (2019: HK$302,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$372,000 (2019: HK$194,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default as the amounts are either from counter-parties with
good history of repayment or subsequently settled. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

BRERRAR ST Y EiE R C ik
ZCEPHE SRS A ER T
ERE -

20206 12 A31 8 - KRS B EREE -
BREARZEA,119,00078 7T (20194 :
302,000/ L) HEBEMAREEHNE
SRENGIRESHA - REBHERT -
372,000 7T (20194F : 194,000 L) E
BEAORSA E B TNRBEL - EFIA
REBRIFEFCENZ HE T AbER
g ARBEUERZSERFEEN
BHm e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSIT AND
PREPAYMENTS (Contd)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, loss allowance for trade and other
receivables has been recorded as the Group considers the default risk of that

amount is high and the recoverability of such is uncertain.

The table below reconciles the loss allowance for trade and other receivables for

20.

B REMEBUYIE - e RFE
TRRIE (2)
HE20FNA3NBLEFE  BEHES
REMERFEELEERE  RER
AEERREMREZENRRERS
BAREEREBERE L JRERE -

TRAFNE S REMEKFEZEE

the year: Big o Bk
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
At | January RIAIH - -
Loss allowance for the year FREEER 1,565 1,070
Less: written-off W WsE (1,565) (1,070)
At 31 December RI2A31H - -

Details of impairment assessment policy of trade and other receivables and deposits

as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 34.

The Group entered into a Simple Agreement for Future Equity with Merchant
Management Solutions PTE. LTD (“Merchant Management”), a private limited
company incorporated in Singapore to make an investment in Merchant
Management as part of the seed funding of Merchant Management which
was recently established. Since the capital injection are still in progress as at
31 December 2020, the amount of US$100,000 (Equivalent to HK$777,000)
was classified as non-current deposit. Further details were listed out in the

announcement dated 28 October 2020.
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21.

22,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a
bank to secure the bank borrowings of the Group (as set out in note 26), which
carry fixed interest rate ranged from 0.35% to 0.39% per annum as at 31 December

2020 (2019: fixed interest rate ranged from 1.63% to 1.68% per annum).

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held and short term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less and carry interest at prevailing market rate

at 0.001% (2019: 0.0019%) per annum at 31 December 2020.

Details of impairment assessment policy for the year ended 31 December 2020 are

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

21.

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

SRITHEBRRAS CEERITE
b2

R2020F 12831 B » BIEFEITER
EADRBARERITERMER TR
TETFR (B HIEE26) + R20204F 12
A3 BRREEFHE035%ZE0.39%:T 2
(2019%F : REFFHME.63%F1.68%

ie) .

RITHEARRIA 2 BIER2020F12A31 H
FIEReRREBBAR=EASIUT
WIRRITHIHENE0.001%(2019%F
0001%) &t S BV BRI T °

HZE2020%F 12 B3I HIEFERRIET G

set out in note 34. B IEH P MIEE34 o
INVENTORIES 22. 78
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Food, beverages and other consumables B~ R KA B 4,956 5,857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/
A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/AN ASSOCIATE/
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due from related companies and a controlling shareholder and non-

controlling shareholders

The amounts are unsecured and interest-free. Other than those trade nature
balances as disclosed below, the remaining balances have no fixed repayment term.
In the opinion of Directors of the Company, the amounts are expected to be

recovered within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount due from a controlling shareholder of
HK$288,000 (2019: HK$98,000) is trade nature with credit term of 60 days from
the date of invoices and aged within 60 days based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period. The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2020 is HK$288,000 (2019: HK$98,000).

Amount due from an associate
The amount is non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed

repayment term. The Directors of the Company expected that such balances will

be recovered within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

162 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED R &EBARA T

23.

Py BARB AR, —R TR
RR—MEE T, FEERER
RME
BUBHAR - —£ERRARIEZR
RFHE

ZEFEREERE LR o BT XAAHK
BOESEEREI SRV EETE
T o ARBEERR 0 ZFHEEH
RRREHARE+ —EARKE -

20205 12 A31 B - BIR—RIEARARER
H) X1 /288,000 7T (20196 : 98,000
B ZNEBESME  FEHA
B#ZHHROXBRRA0RA (1R
BREMREZAMME) - BZE2020
FNANBLEFENGRRRERSER
288,00077T (20194 : 98,000/&7T) ©

FEl — M D RE
ZRREFESME  EER 28R

EETETHR - AAREFAHZF
BN RE AL 12 AR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/
A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/AN ASSOCIATE/
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Contd)

Amounts due from/(to) related companies

Details of the amounts due from/(to) related companies are as follows:

23.

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

ik ENRBATE, —RIER
IRR —MBE DT, IEERR
RFRE (4

FE/ (FEAY) B A A R0R

i/ () BASE 2 B IR R 10

T
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Trade nature: BEHILE
Cigarro Limited ("Cigarro”) (note a) Cigarro Limited([ Cigarro ) (Ff3Ea) (28) (1
Non-trade nature: FEHIUE -
Bilion Huge Asia Pacific Limited (‘Bilion Huge”)  EJKIABRAR ([EK])
(note b) (Fft D) 381 -
Golders Way Company Limited (“Golders Way") ~ Golders Way Company Limited
(note ) ([ Golders Way|) (FffaEc) (825) (225)
(472) (226)
Notes fisr
(@)  Balances with Cigarro, which is controlled by Ms. PY Wong, are trade nature, with a (@)  HCigarro(BEMEA L TIEH]) B4R
credit period from purchase of goods of 30 days. These trading balances with related BESHE  FEMRBEERIE30
companies are unsecured, interest-free and aged within 30 days based on the invoice B o RSN - ZSHEAB QAN
date at the end of the reporting period. BHREBRARIER  REIRERH
BRI B30E A
(b)  Balance with Billion Huge, which is 100% owned by Ms. PY Wong, which is (b) HEEK(HEMALLTERI00%)H

unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed repayment term.

() Balance with Golders Way, which is 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong, is non-trade
nature, with a credit period of 30 days.

BRBEER  LEREETEENY
R e

B Golders Way (EMAZ THE

S0%)MEHEIFE RIEE - FEAR
308 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 24. HEREMBAREREFER
CHARGES
Trade and other payables and accrued charges BEREMEMNZIERESER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB7 Fis7E
Trade payables EC Y ANERE 13,626 15,721
Other payables: H A JEA50IA
Accrued staff related costs et 8 TARRARA 2,791 3227
Other payables and other accrued charges Hofth FEATFRIE R LA e ST B R 25,677 20,205
42,094 39,153

oo

BEERWEERA0R - RHEH

The credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The following is an ageing

analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the R EREZAHZETNE FHEMNTIER
reporting period: AT

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TAT
0to 30 days 0Z30H 4,049 6,585
31 to 60 days 31260H 4413 5423
61 to 90 days 61 £90H 1,652 2924
Over 90 days B3890 H 3512 789
13,626 15,721
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

BHAR

Contract liabilities AHEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET
Restaurant Operation BERE
Deposits received for catering services at ERESRBLER
restaurants MEe 2,601 1,570
Prepaid membership fee ENEEE 298 191
2,899 1,761

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the carried-forward contract
liabilities as at 31 December 2019 in relation to the Group's catering services and

membership fee income are fully recognised as revenue.

The Group's typical payment terms which impact the amount of contract liabilities

recognised are as follows:

Deposits received for catering services at restaurants

The Group normally receives approximately 50% deposits in advance from
customers for catering services in relation to events to be organised at the Group's
restaurants. The Group also receives deposits in advance from members of a
restaurant of the Group and the members will in return be granted equivalent
cash value food and beverage credits for the catering services at that restaurant
during the subscription period, which is normally within one year from the annual
membership card issued to the member. All of these deposits and credits are non-

transferable and non-refundable.

BZE200F12A31BLEFE  piAEE
MESREREEERAME @ 72019
FNANBNEABENABREER
BN o

ARBYECERAVAESRNER
BENCS/SURN
EEESRERMNES

RAKEERERNEDNE - AKE
BERERE P WIE SRR H150%H)
BE - AEETREUIAEE-HE
ENEg8RE  MERE®R ZEE8R
FRABHEESZEREIRGEEE
RemERED  RBH-KRABEE
EREE8FRE—FR - 2FHKER
RO EZ AT AR -

> A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd) 25. efNEaE#E)
Prepaid membership fee ANEEE
The Group receives annual membership fees in full amount at the beginning of the AEERFERBEHRIINEESEF
annual subscription period. Prepaid membership fee will be recognised on a time- B -RANSEERRABHENCERER
based method over the subscription period which will normally be one year. The —F)AERERERNFAER - BNE
prepaid membership fees are non-transferable and non-refundable. BETAEZERTARS -
Movements in contract liabilities BHEENED
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Balance as at | January 1A &R 1,761 1,255
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FARRBABEE L
recognising revenue during the year BERD (1,761) (1,255)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of SR E ARSI FE U R
receipts in advance of catering service provided BYEHBELM 2,899 1,761
Balance as at 3|1 December R12A31 B 2,899 1761
26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. SRITER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAET
Secured bank borrowings BEPRTEN 15,191 3902
Carrying amounts repayable of the bank FEEERTENERE:
borrowings*:
Within one year —FR 4,025 2,668
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ —F JA_H{E BB F 4,000 1,234
More than two years, but not more than five years  fF A BT BBAF 7,166 -
15,191 3,902
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under — J&l : BV BE TS —F R
current liabilities B3l 0b /2] (15,191) (3902)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FERENAE T ATFIRE - -
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan * JEMFEDERER R ETER
agreement. FEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)

As at December 2020 and 2019, the bank borrowings are subject to variable
interest rate of the higher of 2.50% per annum over HIBOR or the bank's cost of
funds and 2.50% per annum below Prime Rate or the bank's cost of funds. The
weighted average interest rate is 3.51% per annum as at 31 December 2020 (2019:

4.62% per annum).

As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings of the Group are secured by
bank deposits of HK$9,500,000 (2019: HK$4,500,000). The bank borrowings of
the Group are guaranteed by corporate guarantees for unlimited amount by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and
2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group obtained the bank guarantee HK$9,000,000
for its rental deposit (2019: HK$4,000,000).

In respect of the Group's bank borrowings in an aggregate amount of
HK$ 15,191,000 as at 31 December 2020, the Group is required to comply
with, among others, the covenant that restricts the Group to maintain certain
financial ratio (the “Loan Covenant”). If the Group fails to perform or comply
with such covenant, the lender may declare the outstanding principal amount,
accrued interest and all other sums payable under the loan immediately due and
payable. The Directors became aware that the Group has technically breached
the Loan Covenant as the Group has failed to fulfill certain financial criteria in
which the calculation is based on the Group's financial information set out in
these financial statements. Out of the outstanding loan as of 31 December 2020
of HK$15,191,000, HKS$ 11,166,000 was reclassified from non-current liabilities to

current liabilities in this respect.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

26.

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE
RITER B

20205 20195 12 8 + RITERTY
REFELS0%MEBRITRERE
HIRTTESHAEEN X REENEX
H250%IRITE RNAE = E AT
BFIEETE 2 2020F 12 A31 BAIN4E
FHEMEAE351%(2019F : FF X
462%) °

R2020F 12831 8 - KEBIETHER
PASRAT77 309,500,00058 75 (20194 -
4,500,000 7 ) fEE A © M20205F K&
2019F 124318 - AEERITIERAR
NERANRETHERRAEREAR
ERIEER

2020 12831 B - AEBBRERS
R & B ER1THER9,000,00058 7T (2019
F 14000000787 °

FAAREER2020F 12 A31 HERITIER
MEEIS,191,0008 LM E - AEEEE
S (HP e RENEEER —EHE
BUEMRN([EREZN]) - HAEE
REBITHEBTEHEY  BHHALEE
HEFBETREERSRE  BiFER
ARt AR - &
EREHNAEERERRE THBE
E(EDEZEUEREMEAEEN
MBAMTE)  FEEBREMNLEE
RERZL - R2020F 12831 Bk
BEBONERAI5 19100087 0 B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

26. BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)

The Group has been communicating with the banks to resolve the breach of the
aforesaid bank covenants in order to maintain the existing banking loan facilities. As
of the approval date of these financial statements, the lenders have not made any

demand for immediate loan repayment.

26. SRITER(Z)

AEBRERRITETER - ABRR
ERRARTEFREMER LT
ROMBER - BEXSHHHREAER
B BERARAREH IR EEERNE

27. PROVISION 27. BE
Reinstatement
works
BEIR
HK$°000
TR
At | January 2019 F2019% 1 A1 H 3,246
Addition RNE 606
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 3,852
Addition NE 260
Utilisation i (258)
Reversal B[ (344)
At 31 December 2020 20204 12 A31 B 3,510

The provision for reinstatement works related to the estimated cost of reinstating
the rented premises to be carried out at the end of respective lease periods. These
amounts have not been discounted for the purpose of measuring the provision for

reinstatement works as the effect is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &R
Number of shares Amount
ROBE Eox-cl

HKS HK$'000
BT THx

At | January 2019, 31 December2020 201951 AIB ~ 20195 &
and 2019 2020 12 A31 B 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 50,000
At | January 2019 and December 2019 #2019% | A1 B&2019%F 12 A 860,000,000 8,600,000 8,600
Placing of new shares (note a) B &R (fiiTa) 171910000 719,100 1719
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 128318 1,031,910,000 10,319,100 10,319

The Company was incorporated on 21 August 2015 in the Cayman Islands with an
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each. One share, credited as fully paid, was allotted and issued on 21 August 2015
to the subscriber of the Company, which was later transferred to Giant Mind on

the same date.

Note:
(@  In September 2020, the Company issued a total of 171,910,000 ordinary shares with

par value of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.08 each. Further details were mainly set
out in the announcement dated 24 September 2020.

All shares issued rank pari passu with other existing shares in all aspects.

ARBR0I5F8 A2 HERSHE T
AL - JETERA 380,000/ © 5
#%38,000,000 X G AR EI1B0.01 /& L) iR
3 o 201558 A21 B » MARBRE
ABLE REIT-RARIEHE DR
R REZRROBEE R R BEE T Giant
Mind °

M

(@) 2020998  RABIEEKR0.08%E
TCRIEREITA 7191000058
EEOIETHE B - —FHE
TEHNEHAE2020F9[A24HHQ

%o

TR EME T HERE MR
BB ERRZFHAL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEHmRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZ200E A3 BLEEE
29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29, RIEHIE

UWTAREER E—EAFEARRNE

The following is the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements

thereon during the current and the prior year.

THREE (RfE) RE

Accelerated

Accelerated

#Eh

ZE))°

accounting tax
Tax losses  depreciation  depreciation Total
mEES  MEBE
BIEER e e #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TER TER TER TER
At | January 2019 201961 A 1R 234 2,980 (250) 2964
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss P8 GIR),/FEA
(note 13) (PzE13) @) (155) 13 (149)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31R 227 2,825 (237) 2815
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss RiBz (M), 5t A
(note 13) (PiHaE13) (227 1,016 (112) 677
At 3| December 2020 20206128318 - 3,841 (349) 3,492
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position,

the following is the analysis of the deferred taxation:

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

29, RIEMHIE (Z)

UTRELERENT - WHEIERA R
Bk 2/ -

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAERT FHET
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 3,841 2,850
Deferred tax liabilities ERENIEEE (349) (35)
3,492 2,815

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$73,208,000 (2019: HK$39,766,000) available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax asset has been derecognised in respect of approximately
HK$ 1,377,000 (2019: recognised HK$1,377,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately
HK$73,208,000 (2019: HK$38,389,000) at 3| December 2020, due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

R2020F 128318 - AEEERHAH
THIEE184773,208,00058 7T (20194 :
39,766,000/ 7T)  A] AR 85 R SR
o BEHIEEEE LAY 1,377,000/ T
HZEEEIUERR (20195 : EBR
1,377,000/ 7T) » B ARH &M R Al 18
Al B ARBE2020F 12 A3 BB T
THIEE184973,208,00058 7T (20194 :
38,389,000/ 7T ) ERIELEHIHEE © B
HE R ERALE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had

the following transactions with its related parties during the year:

30. EABtARS
BEAHBRREMEHAREESN
ER - AEEEEBHTETUTR
% :

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

Catering income from Ms, PY Wong feEME L T AEERIA 69 27

Catering income from Mr. Alan Lo fieAlan Lo EFTISERRIA 125 251

Purchases of goods from Cigarro A Cigarrof& B & 29 22
Restaurant consultancy service income from fe—MEE ARG ERER

an associate FREHA 660 1,064
Lease payment to a company with 50% owned A& A 2B 50% ) A 7

by Ms. PY Wong XHRERRK 900 900

Details of the balances with related companies, a controlling shareholder, non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position and note 23.

Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation to key management personnel of the Group representing

individuals appointed as directors of the Company is set out in note 7.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution,
no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$ 1,500

per employee per month.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represent contributions paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates

specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid or payable to the above retirement benefits schemes by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 is approximately HK$3,220,000
(2019: HK$3,676,000).

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

31.

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

RIKEFIFTE

wiEErT B DREE It AE S I
FIRREIt ESEERERETD - &
BeFAEzEEEAB T ARG
HEANAREZEEDFRHE - RER
EeitE - EXRHEEEDRIAM®E
SR BMELRAIE LR 2 3K - K&
EEMRERTENE-—BERELR
FEREK o BR B RSN - BLRERTE
SETEIT AL UL R AT B AR AR SR
EREHER - HHREBLRATEEE
A 150087 °

RigaEE LA EEKRERARNE
TRE a8 ELRREAE SR - 35
AEEZFBRARTANL X E mE
&S EH AR -

HZE2020F 12831 HILFE - AEER
IR 2 FE 1) b 2R OR A8 F 5T 81 /E S B9 (5K
#93,220,0007 7T (20194 : 3,676,000
JT) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

32. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that

32. FEHEMBLRINFE
TRINEREAFF RS A E

has material non-controlling interests: FEEMBRRAINFE
Place of
incorporation  Proportion of ownership
and principal  interests and voting rights (Loss)/profit
place of held by allocated to Accumulated
business  non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
B
WER  FRREZSEN
TEER BEARER PREFERES
bk RERLA # (&), H RRFERER
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
RI2A318 RI2A318 R12A318
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER  TER
Profit Holder Limited B BRAF] Hong Kong 30% - 1,500 - (1,060) -
(“Profit Holder") (&) 0
Loyal Talent SRERETRR Hong Kong 20% - (32) - (126) -
Intemational Limited BRAT BE
(“Loyal Talent") (T5R% 1)
Champ Winner Limited ~ Champ Winner Limited Hong Kong 20% - (202) - (359) -
(“Champ Winner") (T Champ Winner]) 0
Others Efth NANER NATER NATER 4l 4l
1,307 - (1,500) -

Summarised financial information for the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019 in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

32. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 32. k2 EBMEBLATINGEE &)

(Contd)
Profit Holder B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TET
For the year ended 31 December BZEIAALEE
Revenue WA 42,425 27418
Expenses i (37,287) (32,851)
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive FRmF/ (BB &
Incomef/(expense) for the year FEBA(Fx)e%E 5,138 (5:433)
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income WTNEBRIEFENRF, (EE) R
(expense) for the year attributable to: ZHERA (Fs) 85 -
— owners of the Company . YNCIE 2PN 3,638 (5,433)
— non-controlling interests of Profit Holder — BER IR R R 1,500 -
5,138 (5433)
For the year ended 31 December BZ12A3ALEE
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMEREME 7,437 5,605
Cash flows from investing activities REEBMEREME (3,467) (11,705)
Cash flows from financing activities METHMERENE (1,972) 6,006
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BenA/ (Rt)F8 1,998 %4)
As at 31 December RM12A318
Current assets MENEE 15,972 1,788
Non-current assets FERBEE 21,511 14,662
Current liabilities mEaE (35,119) (37,371)
Non-current liabilities FnRBEE (8,674) (527)
Net liabilities BEFHE (6,310) (11,448)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRFER AEhfES (5,250) (11,448)
Non-controlling interests of Profit Holder B IR IR (1,060) -
(6310) (11,448)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

32. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

32. FEEMBLRINFE#)

(Contd)
Loyal Talent BAER
For the period from
18 April 2019
(date of
incorporation) to
2020 31 December 2019
R2019F4A 188
(FMKIEH)E
20205 2019412831 A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
For the year ended 31 December BZNA3IBLEE
Revenue WA 17,326 1,057
Expenses Fx (16,686) (2,327)
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive EREF/ (BB R2
Income/(expense) for the year BYAN/ (A% @8 640 (1270)
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income T EEEEFERET] (BB R
(expense) for the year attributable to: ZEWA (Fx%)E5 -
~ owners of the Company —AREHEAA 672 (1,270)
— non-controlling interests of Profit Holder — BEH IR £ (32) -
640 (1270)
For the year ended 3| December BZNA3IBLEFE
Cash flows from operating activities REEBMERENE 3,361 655
Cash flows from investing activities REZBMERENE (401) (5,143)
Cash flows from financing activities BETBHMEEERE (2,200) 4281
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BemA/ (i) F8 760 (207)
As at 3| December RI12A31H
Current assets REEE 1,684 733
Non-current assets FnBEE 7,408 10625
Current liabilties yE=NE (7,637) (8842)
Non-current liabilities E =L (2,085) (3.786)
Net liabiities BEFE (630) (1270)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AAREEAEGER (504) (1,270
Non-controlling interests of Profit Holder RERIEERER (126) -
(630) (1,270)

Note: The date of incorporation of Loyal Talent was 18 April 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRHME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

32. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
(Contd)

32. FEEMBLRINFE#)

Champ Winner Champ Winner

For the period from

8 April 2019

(date of

incorporation) to

2020 31 December 2019
201954 A8H

Gaia=EES
20205 20195 12431 B H]
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL
For the year ended 31 December BZNA3IBLEE
Revenue WA 8,630 -
Expenses Fx (10,394) ©)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FRBEREERY
for the year o] (1,764) 9)
Loss and total comprehensive expense TR BEEEFRERR
for the year attributable to: SERMSAE
~ owners of the Company —AREHEAA (1,562) 9)
— non-controlling interests of Profit Holder — BRI R R (202) -
(1764) )
For the year ended 31 December BZNA3IHLEE
Cash flows from operating activities BEEBMERENE 1,761 -
Cash flows from investing activities REZDMERLRE (6,321) -
Cash flows from financing activities HERDAERENE 4,939 -
Net cash inflows BeRmANFE 379 -
As at 31 December RI2A31H
Current assets MENEE [,155 2
Non-current assets FnBEE 10,026 -
Current liabilities mEaE (10,017) (1
Non-current liabilities FrHEE (2,937) -
Net liabilities BEFE (1,773) ©)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AAREAE AEL#ER (1,418) )
Non-controlling interests of Profit Holder BRI RS (355) -
(1773) ©)

Note: The date of incorporation of Champ Winner was 8 April 2019. FI3E : Champ Winnerf95EfAK <2 B 852019

F4A8H °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

32. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
(Contd)

32. FEEMBLRINFE#)

Change in ownership in non-wholly owned subsidiaries F2EMBAREERED
% of equity (Decrease)/ (Loss)/profit
interest increase in allocated to
disposed non-controlling non-controlling
by the Group interests interests
TREFLER
AEEHE #?“Hﬁ%?ﬁ £
BT wA)Bm (R EA
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2000F 1231 BLLEE
Profit Holder (Note a) B2 (Pif5ta) 30% (1,060) 1,500
Loyal Talent (Note b) BAgE (Fitstp) 20% (126) 32)
Champ Winner (Note ) Champ Winner(Ff&c) 20% (355) (202)
Notes: Bzt
(@) The deemed partial disposal of equity interest in Profit Holder by the Group without (@ BRAE @%ﬂ D 6 2 PR R T R 2K
loss of control was due to the sale of 200 and 100 existing shares of Profit Holder R HIERR B BIA200/8 7T & 100
at HK$200 to Behold Julien Private Limited and HK$100 to Yeow Yin Peh Lynn %EﬁBehold ulien Private Limited &2
respectively, who are both independent third parties to the Group. Yeow Yin Peh Lynn(i’] RAEEREY
=77) HE200/ R 100 BERE
fo’\ °
(b):  The deemed partial disposal of equity interest in Loyal Talent by the Group without (b): 7FE7§5!$%.*|3 D 6 BB R T Sk
loss of control was due to the allotment of an aggregate 20 new shares of Loyal ERHIREERBA0/ETAAR LB
Talent at HK$20 to Rachs Consulting Limited, an independent third party to the B % =7 Rachs Consulting Limited&
Group. HAE0MRBASE TS -
(c):  The deemed partial disposal of equity interest in Champ Winner by the Group @ BAEXKEHS ﬁEChamp Winner

without loss of control was due to the allotment of an aggregate 20 new shares of
Champ Winner at HK$20 to Mr. Ferrando Balbi, Agustin Jose, an independent third
party to the Group.

During the year, without loss of control, the Group disposed the partial equity
interest in Profit Holder and completed the deemed partial disposal of the equity
interests in three other subsidiaries. Following the completion of the disposal
transaction and the deemed disposal transactions, the Group remained control of
the subsidiaries. The transactions have been accounted for as equity transactions

FA AEEBERBIEN RS
RRHPHENEM =B

PRRE T R AR A AR R R R A 2078 7T
) 78 55 B A998 37 25 = J5 Ferrando Balbi,
Agustin Jose 2 4 & L8 20/ Champ
Winners#f B {7 ©

ETE’\]H%EEW

WEKEEGE - HEXHRERNE

SERIE

AKE RSB A F R %‘ME °

AR S E AR RIFERE SRR

with the non-controlling interests as follows: 5 MR :

Increase in equity

Consideration Net liabilities attributable to

received for attributable to owners of the

the disposal of the disposal of ~ Company (included

ownership interest  ownership interest in retained earnmgs)

ANEAEEA

LERGERE HERDEER  EAE@EN

PR 8 EhEaEFE  (GTAREBER)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TR
Profit Holder Bz —* (2,560) (2,560)
Loyal Talent A%k — (94) (94)
Champ Winner Champ Winner —* (153) (153)
Other Hth (80) —* (80)
(80) (2.807) (2.887)

*

represented balance less than HK$ 1,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to REBNEAER S ERRAEBRAN
continue as a going concern while maximising the retumn to stakeholders through BEBYRBELE  RNERELE
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy BREREERS  SEAREFTREK
remains unchanged from prior year. B4R - REENBBHRELFER -
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt balance and equity balance. AEERNEAEBEOEER B IER
Debt balance mainly consists of bank borrowings and lease liabilities (details as R o BRI ERRERITENKLME
set out in note 26 and note |7). Equity balance consists of equity attributable to EaE (GFEHNMT26 RME7) - &
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. REBRBEAATEE AEGEER (B2
REBTRALGERE)
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on an on-going AEEEREERESFRIBRNERE
annual basis. As part of this review, the management of the Group considers BEER I REREEERNMA R
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on BER - REASEEEENER K
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group will balance its SEBEBIMNRE - BITHRRE
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well THEXEEERNTHEREERLE
as the issue of new debt or repayment of debts. B
The net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows: RBEHRNERFEEERLEMN
T

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAET

Total debt EUEE 64,681 45,654
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A ReRREEEY (15,443) (8,142)
Net Debt ER R 49,238 37512
Total equity RmRE 23,538 29,175
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BRFEUCARER X 209% 129%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

@

34. £MTH

Categories of financial instruments @ SBMIEHER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Financial assets at amortised cost WEHK AT EN SR EE 51,664 42,166
Financial liabilities at amortised cost WA T EN SR AE 107,628 85,033
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) EHREREEEHRBK

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables
and deposits, amounts due from related companies, a controlling
shareholder, non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables
and accrued charges, amounts due to related companies, a controlling
shareholder and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies

on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

Management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

()

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to floating-rate bank borrowings, and fair value interest rate risk in
relation to pledged bank deposits and non-interest bearing amounts
due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder and non-

controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, amount due from an associate.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group closely monitors its exposure to
future cash flow risk as a result of change on market interest rate and
will consider hedging changes in market interest rates should the need

arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are

detailed in the liquidity risk section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances and floating-rate
bank borrowings as the management of the Group considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank balances and bank borrowings is

minimal.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

34. MTAE)
(b) EREREBENRBE(Z)

(i)

-7

T

AEETZEMBUEHIE
RITERONRERRERNE
Bk RBEBECSERRIT
T#&F‘EH&/#%H‘%“
s — R AR R K T B
AT?E? B E RS
TH UL R B FRIER
DNIER R o

S5 B B 1 3 4 S
B o AT AREEE
BERIEEET S %
FHMEROFARRLR
AR UBRARER
EREHTISFIEED) -

K%E"] i/ﬂbiﬂtﬂ
BREEEPEAEERT
[EREENTBRITRAE

REEHSREEFER
RRAKERDE L AR
— i -

ARAEEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the maximum exposure to credit risk of
the Group which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades with a large number of individual customers and
trading terms are mainly on cash and credit card settlement. In view
of the Group's operation, the Group does not have significant credit
risk exposure to any single individual customer. Since | January
2018, the Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is assessed on an individual
debtor basis. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss pattems for different customers, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customers as at | January 2018.
At 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group assessed the lifetime
ECL of the trade receivables and 12m ECL of the other receivables
and considered that the expected credit loss allowance for these

receivables is immaterial.

182 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R &EBARA T

34. £MTIH %)
TREREEENREE (Z)

(b)

(i)

EEmRR B ETE

R2020F 128318 » A%
ERHEFHFREBITER
SAEERXUBEREM
ERENEaEERR - &

RERE BB K&
HERRAEHEEREE -

EZRAMBWTE

TES

Eﬁ$&1§ﬁﬁ—%mﬂ/ ° B/\
AEENER  NEBH

ERIME—E@AARFA
HEAEERRKR - 52018

FIAIBR  RNEBELIR
BEAGESARRTEE
ERBEFENESREE
FENSEAEEHREK
HIEMEBREE - AR
SENELEEEELR
TIHRATRELHER
BRAERAEZR AR
2018F | I B & —

PAEBETREFEZ
BERROEERE -
2019 % 220204 12 A3
A AEEFHTESRE
Yo R I8 #Y 2 B 77 48 HA TE AR
EEEEREMERIE
g2 AEBREEESE -
TRAEZERKHKIENTE
HEERERAEREZE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

Amounts due from related parties

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due
from related companies, a controlling shareholder, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate. The management of
the Group considers the counterparties have continuous repayment
history. Since | January 2018, the Group measures loss allowances for
amounts due from related parties at an amount equal to 12m ECL,
which is assessed on an individual debtor basis. As at 31 December
2020, the management of the Group assessed that the expected
credit loss allowance for these receivables is immaterial under [2m
ECL method.

Bank balances and pledge bank deposits

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with bank balances and pledged bank deposits since they are
substantially deposited at medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed
banks. Management does not expect that there will be any significant
losses from non-performance by these counterparties. The Group has
concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and

bank balances are placed with three banks in Hong Kong.

me

Bt B SRR MY RE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

34. MTAE)
(b) EREREBENRBE(Z)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)  Liquidity risk

In view of the factors mentioned in Note 3(b), a series of measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure have been taken to improve its financial

and liquidity position of the Group as a whole.

The management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and

maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based

on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount

is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 3| December 2020, the Group reported
a net loss of HK$19,100,000. As of that date, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$46,004,000 including the
reclassification of non-current portion of bank borrowings to current
liability resulted from the breach of loan covenant. In view of these
factors, the Group seeks for the financial support on its controlling
shareholder Ms. PY Wong and takes certain measure to mitigate the
liquidity pressure by improving its financial and liquidity position as a

whole.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conta)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Contd)

A EEHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

34. £MTIH %)
b) EREREEENRBEE

(i) HEELEE (E)

In more In more
Weighted than one than two
average year years but
effective but not not more Total Total
interest  Repayable Lessthan ~ more than than five  undiscounted carrying
rate  on demand oneyear  two years years  cash flows amount
BB-F  BEmF REEB
it 382 BEX SR BFER  ETHEE ReRE R
BEAZ L1 - mE ik 8B a8
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEx TiEn TiEn T TiEn
Asat 3| December 2020 #2005 127318
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3 4T4£ £RBE - - - - - - -
Trade and other payables and BH RAMER
accrued charges FEREGEBR  NATER - 42,094 - - 42,094 42,094
Amounts due to related companies  EREIEEARIFE  NATER - 853 - - 853 853
Bank borrowings  floating rate ~ SRTER— 128 351% - 6,263 4113 7398 17,774 15,191
Lease liabilties HEAE 5.00% - 24,844 17,026 10,767 52,637 49,490
- 74,054 21,139 18,165 113,358 107,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 34. £ETA %)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd) b) SHEREEENRBXZE)
(i) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (i) HEELEE (E)
In more In more
than one than two
Weighted year but years but
average
effective not more not more Total Total
interestrate  Repayable Less than than two than five  undiscounted carrying
on demand one year years  cash flows amount
BA-F  HEWE  AME
il 38 BER SR BFERE  ETEE RERE &
BRAZ 1 - k3 an a8
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEx TER TiEn FiEx TiEn
As at 3| December 2019 R2019% 128318
Non-derivative financial labities ~ JEATH S RAE
Trade and other payables and BH RAMER
accrued charges FERESER  NATER 9136 30017 - - 39,153 39,153
Amounts due to related companies  EREBRERAIFE  NATER - 26 - - 26 26
Bank borrowings ~ floating rate RITlEH -8 462% - 2790 - 4081 3902
Lease libiltes HEAE 5.00% - 28811 11819 3076 43,706 41,752
9,136 61,844 13,110 3076 87,166 85,033

The amounts included above for variable interest rate non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to changes if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end

of the reporting period.

(c)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are

measured at amortised cost

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of the financial assets
and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost using discounted cash
flows analysis. The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost

in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

35. ARQTHEER

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary K—REBARRERE 41,204 41,204
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and others AR FIE R E M 296 181
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BT B A Bk IE 5,708 345
Bank balances and cash RITEARRBA 2 3,790 22
9,794 548
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges HAh e 3IE R et B 1,547 1433
Amounts due to subsidiaries TP B 50R 14,795 13,045
Amounts due to related companies JEf BAsE N B 501A 52 121
16,394 14,599
Net current liabilities REAEFH (6,600) (14,051)
Net assets BEFE 34,604 27,153
Capital and reserves EARRE
Share capital (note 28) AR (FfEE28) 10,319 8,600
Reserves s 24,285 18,553
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KAREEAELER 34,604 27,153
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mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

35. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

35.

ARRMBEER (7)

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B2 1E RitEE @t

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000
TR THET TR

At | January 2019 R2019% 1 A 1R
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year — F NEIE R 2 HFH S B

73,601 (31912) 41689
- (23.136) (23.136)

At 31 December 2019 2019 12H31H 73,601 (55,048) 18,553
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FREER2HEFA LR 11,664 (5932) 5,732
At 31 December 2020 M2020F 12831 R 85,265 (60,980) 24,285

Note: Details are set out in the notes to the consolidated statement of change in equity and

note 28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020
BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

36. MERBMELAENHE

TR AEERE RS AELREN
BHYFE  RREASIIFRSED - B
BRPMELREENMELREREY
FARRERESAELEBGARER

activities.

EXRFHESBERYMBRERE

%o

Non-trade
nature

amounts due

to related Lease Bank
companies liabilities borrowings
FE 1 BE R
NERE
(FEZME) HEAE BITHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE FiE7 FiE7
At | January 2019 20191 A 1A 90 57,071 8,445
Financing cash flows MERENE - (27,039) (4,850)
Non-cash item: FREER
Finance costs BERA - 2437 307
Additions of lease liabilities ENEERE - 10,729 -
Reassessment EHEHA - (1,446) -
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A31BK
| January 2020 20201 A1 H 90 41,752 3,902
Financing cash flows MERERE 735 (21,184) 10,688
Proceeds from share placing R EERNFRERIE - - -
Transaction costs attributable to BLE IR 17 G B
placing of shares REBAE - _ _
Non-cash item: FELEE :
Finance costs MEMA - 1,682 601
Additions of lease liabilities EmEESE - 5,358 -
Reassessment B - 21,882 -
At 31 December 2020 20205128318 825 49,490 15,191
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BZE200F 12831 HLEEE

37.

190 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R &BARA T

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries comprising the Group at the end of the

37. FEMBATINFE

RBEMR - AEEETEIEHE AR

reporting period are set out below: BT
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
EBTR AEERI2A31H
WEAREE TEMEAR 3 4t B ES b BRRE FREEIR A L ) TEEH
2020 2019
Big Team Ventures Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Big Team Ventures Limited =~ EBRZEE B 500003 7T 100% 100% REER
Brightsome Investments BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
HEREEBRAF] RERUHS &R B 100% 100% EELE
Capital Creative Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
BRBRAF BE BE 100/ 7T 100% 100% EELE
Duddell's Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 100 100% 100%  Club membership services
Limited for one of the Group's
restaurants
Duddell's Hong Kong EB B 100787T 100% 100% RAKEHP-HEE
Limited RHEAXBEERE
Gain Long Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 1,000 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
EinARAT BE BE | 0007 TT 100% 100% EELE
Ideal Profit Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$50,000 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
HEERAR BE BE 5000077 100% 100% EELE
Kingswide Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
EHERAF BE BE 1007 7T 100% 100% EELE
Luck Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Luck Wealthy Limited e EB 10078 7T 100% 100% BELE
Oman International Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$3 100% 100%  Trademark holder
Investment Limited
ZEEREARRAR &R BE 3BT 100% 100% BREAA
Profit Holder Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 70% 100%  Restaurant operation
BEERAT BE BE 1 0007 7T 70% 100% EELE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BZE2020F12H3IBLLEE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

37. FEMBARNFE 2

Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
ERTR AEERI2A31A
HEBLREE TEMAR 3 4t B e SR BRRA FREFIR At ) TRER
2020 2019
Rising Mark Development ~ BVI Hong Kong Us$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BERERBRAT RERTES BA 10,0003 7T 100% 100% HEEK
Springlike Limited BVI Hong Kong USS| 100% 100%  Investment holding
Springlike Limited EERUES Eit ES 100% 100% &EER
Top Glorification Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Top Glorffication Limited ~ HEBRZEE B 100£7T 100% 100% BELE
Victory Rich Global Group ~ BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
CRRHREBERDE  EBEAEE BE 10,00057T 100% 100% HEEK
Dazzle Long Limited BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Dazzle Long Limited HBELES 0 EH 100% 100% REZK
Maxmount Global Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Provision of consultancy
services in connection
with the restaurant
operation
BERHBERAF RERUES BE B 100% 100% AEBLEREBERER
#
Season Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Investment holding
Season Luck Limited RERLES BE B 100% 100% AR
Pure Love Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Pure Love Limited RERUES BE 1003%7T 100% 100% BELE
Ultra Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$! 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
AERRAF BE BE BN 100% 100% EELE
Fine Wisdom Holdings BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Fine Wisdom Holdings EBELES 0 E 100% 100% REEK
Limited
Vantage Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Vantage Luck Limited HBELES EE ESH 100% 100% REZK
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 37. TEMBATIMEZ)
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
ERITR AEERI2A31A
HEBLREE TEMAR 3 4t B e SR BRRA FREFIR At ) TEEH
2020 2019
King Access Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
HARRAA BB B BT 100% 100% BEEE
Fit Asia Inc Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
REARAF) BB GG 1 000787T 100% 100% AR
Hidden Glory Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hidden Glory Limited REBRZHE B 100ZE7T 100% 100% &ZEER
Jolly Master Enterprises BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Jolly Master Enterprises RBRIHS A EST 100% 100% "B
Limited
Champ Winner Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 80% 100%  Restaurant operation
Champ Winner Limited e B 1007 7T 80% 100% BELE
Ever Creation Asia Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 100 60% 100%  Trademark holder and
Investment Limited retails
BIESARABBRAR  BR BE 10078 7T 60% 100% ARRKEARTE
Loyal Talent International Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 100 80% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
SAREIR AR AR BE BE 10078 7T 80% 100% BELE
Mighty Kingdom Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
R AR AT BE BE 1,000,000/ 70 100% 100% AR
Sure Big Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$! 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
BEABRAR BE BE BT 100% 100% EELE
Well Team Enterprise Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Well Team Enterprise EB &k I 100% 100% IREER
Limited
Ever Brave Ventures BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Ever Brave Ventures EBELES Bk E 100% 100% IREER
Limited

192 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED R &EBARA T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

37. FEMBARNFE 2

Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 31 December Principal activities
ERTR AEERI2A31A
HEARAE EEMAR 3t B R HRRE PR RAs L 4l TRER
2020 2019
Rich Gain Ventures BVI Hong Kong US$ | 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Rich Gain Ventures RERUES BE 1% 100% 100% REEK
Limited
Star Glory Ventures BVI Hong Kong USS| 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Star Glory Ventures RBRLES B E 100% 100% HEER
Limited
Incredible Resources BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 100% - Investment holding
Limited
Incredible Resources RBREZES BA | 000 7T 100% - BEERK
Limited
Express Star Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% - Dormant
Limited
Express Star Corporation B BE 17T 100% - BEE
Limited
Benefit King Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ ! 100% - Dormant
HEARAT BA BA BT 100% - BER%E

The above table lists the entities now comprising the Group which, in the opinion

of the Directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of

the Group. To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Big Team is directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company. All subsidiaries now comprising the Group are limited liability

companies and have adopted 3| December as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

EREIAKERSETERE - A F]
EXERR FHERHAKENZEENR
BERBKIBYE ADAEFERR
REEMBMB AR B HERARF
EREBR -

Big Team AN AR EREREH  FTE E A
MEAREARARERE - A5E
BEETHENBRRYABRAR
WERA 12 A3 BREBFLRA -

RER - HEMBLQREITEABERE
% o
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the share option
scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the shareholders
passed on 23 January 2018. The terms of the share option scheme are in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The share option scheme became
effective on 8 February 2018, and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will

remain in force for 10 years from that date.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of the

share option scheme.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
shareholders. The Board of Directors of the Company may offer to grant an option

to any Qualifying Grantees.

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who
is an officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates; (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates; (3)
any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group
or any affiliates; (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier
of goods or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof
(collectively the “Eligible Person”); or (i) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible
Person or his immediate family members or any company controlled by an Eligible

Person or his immediate family members.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contq)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company (Cont d)

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the share option
scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this
will result in the limit being exercised. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the share option scheme
and any other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issued following the completion of the capitalisation issue and the share

offer, i.e. 86,000,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the share option scheme such that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any |2-month period up to the date
of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to

time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme at any time during a period as determined by the board of Directors of
the Company and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the share option scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0
upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the offer (or such period
as the board of Directors of the Company may specify in writing). The exercise
price of the options is determined by the board of Directors of the Company in
its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the
closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the offer date; (b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (c) the nominal value of a share. The share option scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 8 February 2018, after which no

further options will be granted or offered.

e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2020

BZ200F 12831 HLEEE

8. MRiRERTEl(2)

AARNESREENBRETS ()

IRIRRE A & R A M E AR BRI &
WARITE 2 BITEINBEREEREI TR
REA] T RIT 2R BEREE - TEEHA
TEEBITRN Z30% ° KRR TEIR
BALD R A ER A EIES
PREE 2 BEARAE - RIRIRFE AR ST &I AR
NEMEME A I TR EOMARR
RETEMA R RTRRNEE LIRE
HAGRAZEERAMBITRRHES
ST 1A B BTN Y 10% » 886,000,000
MR LA

A 212 BERITRAERE
R B YL ER 2EA MR E
RRAGERBRE  MEMCHTRKE
FRITOBRN QBBBR AR #
TTIRAE 1% - AIMERZ2BER LT
BEe
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39.

40.

41.

42.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. BEAEIE
The Group had capital commitments as follows: AEBERALNT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
Contracted, but not provided for, in respect of: ERTAVEARF TFIEE fEL B -
property, plant and equipment ME - BER&E 1,388 4,000

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2021, the Group has granted a total of 3,750,000 share options (the
2021 Option”) to certain Directors and employees of the Group to subscribe
for ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each of the Company at pre-exercise
price of HK$0.13 per share. The validity period of the 2021 Option is three years
from the date of acceptance and the 2021 Option will be lapse at the expiry of the
option period. Details of which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated

I'l January 2021.

In February 2021, the Group has set up a branch of its specialty coffee brand
“Between” in Wan Chai, Hong Kong, Details of which are set out in the Company's

announcement dated 2 February 2021.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As mentioned in note 6, certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

conform to current year's presentation.

APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the board of Directors on 23 March 2021.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hF R IEHE

The following table summaries the consolidated financial statements of the Group in

respective year as indicated:

TRESIRAREFARBRERSWETRE -

For the year ended 31 December

BENDABLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
(re-presented)
(&E751)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT  TET  TAT TAT TER
Revenue WA 232,375 236371 230256 217738 173,303
Profit (loss) before taxation BB ATER (BR) (7531) B27) (15673 (31697 (1973)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrisH () /% (2012) (1357) (753) (260) 637
Profit (loss) for the year FRatl (E8) (9,543) (4574) (16426) (31957) (19,100)
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hih2mE (FAZ)BA
ftems that may be subsequently reclassified HEMRENIHE
to profit or loss: BRmER
Exchange differences arising on translation BEBINEBE LR
of foreign operation EXER (129) — — — —
Reclassification of translation reserve to HEBINERE RS
profit or loss upon disposal of i E i e b
foreign operation 382 — — — —
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMEE (FZ)BA
for the year 253 — — — —
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREEKA (AR B8
for the year (9,290) (4574) (16,426) (31,957) (19,100)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: AT R IERIEFRRT]
(1) :
— Owners of the Company —AREHEEA (8,245) (4567) (15435) (31957) (20,407)
— Non-controling interests — RS (1,298) ! (991) — 1,307
(9.543) (4,574) (16426) (31957) (19,100
Total comprehensive income (expense) UTREREFEAEE
for the year attributable to: WA (2 )4
— Owners of the Company —ARAHEBA (7992) (4,567) (15435) (31,957) (20,407)
— Non-controling interests — IR (1,298) ! (991 — 1,307
(9,290) (4,574) (16426) (31957) (19,100
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Note:

Pursuant to the group reorganisation as more fully explained in the section headed “Corporate
Reorganisation” in Appendix V to the Prospectus (the “Group Reorganisation”), the Company
became the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 23 January 2018. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting from the Group Reorganisation have
been under the common control of Ms. Wong Pui Yain throughout the years ended 31 December
2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 or since their respective dates of incorporation, where there
is a shorter period and is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the principles of merger accounting in accordance with
Accounting Guideline 5 "Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as if the Company had always been the holding

company of the Group.

The above financial information is extracted from the consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017,
2018, 2019 and 2020, which are prepared as if the current group structure had been in existence
throughout the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 or since the date of

incorporation of respective group companies where there is a shorter period.

EFEHBEE

B aE

BESESHA(EEEAR] - R BRERN
AlESEHE]—F)  KAAFR2018F I A23BK
ARRERAEENE DR ERAR - REESE
HEMEANRER (RERRAIRENBAR)RE
F2016%F ~ 20174 ~ 20184 ~ 20194 }2020%F 12
A3 BIEFERBZZ LR B MK BELK
(ABEBEAE) —EXHEMEL T LRS-
ARBRREREESR - At REMBRERER
BESEMASRMN g5 B55% [ HRE
tleftz et IRt e e ZRAIG
2 BUARA—EAREENERAT

P BER T HEEAEEEZE20165 - 2017
F 20185 ~ 2019F F2020F 12 A3 I HIEFER
AR LAMRENEE - BRREN SRS
REZE20165F ~ 20175 + 20184F + 20199 22020
F12A31 BIEFESE S EE QR M B R
(AR BRI A%E)BFE
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FFEUBHRE

As at 31 December

RI12A318
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
FAET T THET FAT FET
Assets and liabilties BERBE
Total assets BE®E 92,170 85715 94,772 120,140 138,056
Total liabilities BEEHE (48,176) (46904) (33,640) (90965)  (114518)
Net assets BE#E 43994 38811 61,132 29,175 23,538
Equity attributable to: NTRIEEERE: :
— Owners of the Company R YNGI Z-UN 45425 39,033 61,132 29,175 25,038
— Non-controlling interests — IR (1431) 222) — — (1,500)
43994 38811 61,132 29,175 23,538
Note: BEE -

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group on 23 January 2018. The Group comprising the Company
and its subsidiaries resulting from the Group Reorganisation have been under the common control
of Ms. Wong Pui Yain throughout the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020
or since their respective dates of incorporation, where there is a shorter period and is regarded as a
continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
principles of merger accounting in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as if the Company had always been the holding company of the Group.

The above financial information is extracted from the consolidated statements of financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 which present the assets and
liabilities of the companies now comprising the Group as at the respective dates as if the current

group structure had been in existence at those dates.
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